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40th Annual Report 2008 2007

Total Premiums $ 1,709,435,000 $ 1,630,208,000

Total Revenues 1,600,148,000 2,162,946,000

Net Operating Income (1) 111,604,000 91,717,000

Net (Loss) Income (126,963,000) 210,688,000

Total Assets (including segregated funds) 10,914,994,000 12,835,288,000

Shareholders’ Equity:
Beginning 2,700,446,000 2,397,721,000
Impact of change in accounting standards — 233,566,000
Comprehensive (loss) income:

Net (loss) income (126,963,000) 210,688,000
Other comprehensive loss (343,272,000) (128,828,000)

 (470,235,000) 81,860,000
Dividends (12,060,000) (12,060,000)
Other (952,000) (641,000)

Ending 2,217,199,000 2,700,446,000

Per Share Information:
Net Operating Income (1) 30.53 24.54
Net (Loss) Income

 - basic (41.20) 60.29
 - diluted (41.20) 57.37

Comprehensive (Loss) Income (1) (144.42) 21.58
(1) See Management’s Discussion and Analysis for use of non-GAAP measures

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held at 11:45 a.m. on Friday, May 8, 2009, in the Meeting 
Room of The Dominion of Canada General Insurance Company, 4th Floor, 165 University Avenue, 
Toronto. All shareholders are invited to attend.

The Year at a Glance

Financial Corporation Limited and subsidiary companies
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Report on E-L Financial Corporation Limited 

This document has been prepared for the purpose of providing Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(“MD&A”) of the fi nancial condition and results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2008 
and 2007. This MD&A should be read in conjunction with the Company’s December 31, 2008 year-end 
consolidated fi nancial statements, which form part of the E-L Financial Corporation Limited 2008 Annual 
Report dated March 9, 2009. The consolidated fi nancial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) and unless otherwise noted, the 
reporting currency for the Company is the Canadian dollar, and all amounts in the consolidated fi nancial 
statements and this MD&A are in Canadian dollars.
This MD&A contains certain forward-looking statements that are subject to risks and uncertainties that 
may cause the results or events mentioned in this discussion to differ materially from actual results or 
events. No assurance can be given that results, performance or achievement expressed in, or implied 
by, forward-looking statements within this disclosure will occur, or if they do, that any benefi ts may be 
derived from them. All per share amounts are based on the number of Common Shares outstanding 
at December 31, 2008, adjusted for the Company’s proportionate interest in its own shares (“Adjusted 
Common Shares”).
Additional information relating to the Company, including its Annual Information Form, may be found at 
www.sedar.com.
Use of non-GAAP measures
MD&A contains reference to net operating income, net operating income per share and comprehensive 
(loss) income per share. These terms do not have any standardized meaning according to GAAP and 
therefore may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other companies. The Company 
believes that these measures provide information useful to its shareholders in evaluating the Company’s 
fi nancial results. Net operating income is net income excluding realized loss on available for sale 
investments of $132.5 million (2007 – gain of $133.6 million) and loss from equity method investment 
of $106.1 million (2007 – loss of $14.6 million), all net of tax. Net operating income per share is net 
operating income less preferred dividends divided by the average number of Adjusted Common Shares 
outstanding. Comprehensive income per share is comprehensive income less preferred dividends divided 
by the average number of Adjusted Common Shares outstanding.
The Company
E-L Financial Corporation Limited (the “Company” or “E-L Financial”) operates as an investment and 
insurance holding company. The Company owns 100% of The Dominion of Canada General Insurance 
Company (“The Dominion”) and 80% of The Empire Life Insurance Company (“Empire” or “Empire Life”). 
The Company also owns investments in equities and fi xed income securities directly, and indirectly, 
through pooled funds, closed-end investment companies and other investment companies (“Corporate 
Investments”).
The Company’s strategy is to accumulate shareholder value through long-term capital appreciation and 
dividend income from its investments.  E-L Financial manages its investments through representation on 
the boards of directors of the two insurance subsidiaries and the other investment companies in which 
the Company has shareholdings.
Overview of results
The consolidated fi nancial statements that follow include E-L Financial’s share in the results and 
fi nancial position of the two insurance subsidiaries and the Company’s Corporate Investments. Additional 
information is provided in the notes to the consolidated fi nancial statements and the fi ve year summary 
of results on pages 71 to 73.
The Company reported net operating income of $28.5 million for the fourth quarter of 2008, compared 
with $28.2 million for the fourth quarter of 2007. For the year, net operating income was $111.6 million or 
$30.53 per share compared with $91.7 million or $24.54 per share in 2007. The Life Insurance segment



Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Report on E-L Financial Corporation Limited (cont’d)

The following table summarizes the results of the Company’s business segments:

 Corporate General Life
 Investments Insurance Insurance Total

 (millions of dollars) 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Net (loss) income:
Operating income $     18 $     25 $     29 $     45 $     65 $     22 $    112 $     92
Realized (loss) gain on
    available for sale
    investments (73) 12 (33) 100 (27) 22 (133) 134
Loss from equity
    method investment (106) (15) — — — — (106) (15)

   $  (161) $     22 $     (4) $   145 $     38 $     44 $  (127) $   211
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increase in net operating income was primarily due to the net release of policy liabilities resulting from 
the annual update of actuarial assumptions and the effect of applying updated guidance regarding the 
calculation of the Discounted Future Tax Liability (“DFTL”) under Financial Instrument accounting rules. 
The General Insurance segment reported a decrease in net operating income during the year due to 
higher underwriting losses resulting from higher weather-related property losses and the deterioration 
in Facility Association’s automobile insurance results.
For the fourth quarter and the year, net income declined sharply relative to the comparable periods in 
2008 as the decline in the global stock markets resulted in realized losses on the sale of investments 
during 2008 compared to the realized gains that were recorded last year. A net loss of $119.4 million 
or $36.66 per share was reported for the fourth quarter of 2008 compared with net income of $106.4 
million or $31.22 per share in 2007. For the year, a net loss of $127.0 million or $41.20 per share was 
reported compared with net income of $210.7 million or $60.29 per share in 2007.
On a consolidated basis, after tax, the Company reported a realized loss on available for sale investments of 
$132.5 million for the year compared with a gain of $133.6 million in the prior year. Corporate Investments’ 
equity method investment, United Corporations Limited, decreased in value by $106.1 million after tax, 
due to negative global stock markets, compared to a decrease of $14.6 million in 2007. 
During the year, E-L Financial purchased a $125 million subordinated debenture from Empire Life. The 
6.10% subordinated debenture was issued on market terms to strengthen Empire Life’s capital position 
and to enable Empire Life to continue the signifi cant growth it has experienced in recent years. This 
debenture is fully eliminated in the consolidated fi nancial statements.

Consolidated comprehensive (loss) income
Comprehensive income (loss) combines net income (loss) and other comprehensive income (loss) (“OCI” or 
“OCL”) for the year. The change in fair value of assets classifi ed as available for sale (“AFS”) with a quoted 
price in an active market is recorded in OCI or OCL. When gains or losses are realized on these assets 
the gains or losses are reclassifi ed out of OCI into net income. The change in fair value of AFS assets 
without a quoted price in an active market is not permitted to be recognized until realized and accordingly, 
is not refl ected in OCI. In the fourth quarter, E-L Financial had OCL of $165.8 million (2007 - $99.6 million) 
which, when combined with a net loss of $119.4 million (2007 – net income of $106.4 million) resulted in 
a comprehensive loss of $ 285.2 million (2007 – income of $ 6.8 million). For the year, E-L Financial had 
OCL of $ 343.2 million (2007 - $128.8 million) refl ecting the decrease in market values of investments, 
which when combined with a net loss of $127.0 million (2007 – net income of $ 210.7 million) resulted in a 
comprehensive loss of $ 470.2 million (2007 – income of $81.9 million).
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Report on E-L Financial Corporation Limited (cont’d)

Corporate investments
During the last quarter of calendar 2008 global stock markets continued to be very volatile and suffered 
signifi cant losses, ending one of the worst stock market years in recent history. Most sectors experienced 
considerable declines refl ecting the deepening fi nancial crisis and rapidly deteriorating economic 
prospects. In Canadian dollar terms, during the fourth quarter of 2008, the S&P/TSX Composite 
decreased 22.7%, the MSCI World Index decreased 9.6% and the S&P 500 Index declined 9.8%. 
On a year to date basis, the S&P/TSX Composite declined 33.0%, the MSCI World Index decreased 
26.5% and the S&P 500 Index declined 21.9%. United Corporations Limited, the Company’s equity 
method investment, on a before tax basis, lost $44.9 million for the fourth quarter (2007 - $10.1 million) 
and year to date lost $106.1 million (2007 – $14.6 million), refl ecting the movements in global equity 
markets. The decline in stock markets is also refl ected in the after tax realized loss on available for sale 
investments of $103.5 million in the fourth quarter of 2008 (2007 – an after tax realized gain of $88.7 
million) and $132.5 million (2007 - an after tax realized gain of $133.6 million) on a year to date basis. 
The Company’s portfolio investments include $453.8 million (2007 - $520.1 million) of investments in 
entities that can be signifi cantly infl uenced by a party that can signifi cantly infl uence the Company. In 
management’s view, investments in these companies are consistent with the investment strategy and 
contribute to achieving the investment objective of the Company. Included in investment and other 
income in the consolidated statements of income are cash dividends from these companies amounting 
to $11.5 million (2007 - $10.7 million).
The Company does not hold any asset backed commercial paper.
From time to time, the Company places a portion of its portfolio with investment managers. The 
Company selects managers whose investment strategies align with the Company’s strategy of long-
term capital appreciation. 
All Corporate Investments have market risk as they are subject to volatility and present a risk of capital 
loss. Market risk also includes foreign currency, interest rate, liquidity and credit risks. The management 
and the Board of the Company review the Corporate Investments on a quarterly basis.
Critical accounting estimates
The Company’s signifi cant accounting policies are described in Note 3 to the consolidated fi nancial 
statements. Certain of these policies require management to make estimates and assumptions about matters 
that are inherently uncertain. The most critical of these estimation processes for Corporate Investments is 
the determination of allowances for impaired investments.
Available for sale securities are subject to a regular review for losses that are other than temporary. If 
a security is assessed to have a loss that is other than temporary, the loss is then recognized in the 
consolidated statements of income. Factors considered in determining whether a loss is temporary 
include the length of time and extent to which fair value has been below cost, the fi nancial conditions 
and near-term prospects of the issuer and the ability and intent to hold the investment for a period of 
time suffi cient to allow for recovery. During 2008, the Corporate Investments portfolio recognized other 
than temporary impairment of $34.4 million (2007 – $1.0 million) on securities with a carrying value of 
$79.7 million (2007 - $1.9 million). These assets were written down since the fair value was less than 
cost and management intended to sell during the fi rst quarter 2009.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Liquidity and capital resources
Liquidity refers to the Company’s ability to maintain cash fl ow adequate to fund operations as well as to 
provide resources for additional investments. 
The Company’s corporate obligations, primarily dividend payments on its outstanding Common and 
Preference Shares, are funded by cash fl ows arising from its equity and fi xed income portfolio as well 
as dividends from its subsidiaries. The per share dividend amounts declared during the year were as 
follows: Common Shares: $0.50 (2007 - $0.50), Series A Convertible Preference Shares: $0.50 (2007 
- $0.50), First Preference Shares, Series 1: $1.325 (2007 - $1.325) and First Preference Shares, Series 
2: $1.1875 (2007 - $1.1875). Excess cash fl ows are invested in additional investments as appropriate 
opportunities become available.
During 2008, the Company entered into a 364 day revolving credit facility of $65 million, which matures 
on September 30, 2009. Borrowings are at variable interest rates that are based on 90 day banker’s 
acceptances. At December 31, 2008, $25 million was drawn on this facility.

Composition of consolidated cash fl ows: 
 Corporate General Life
 Investments Insurance Insurance Total

 (millions of dollars) 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

 Cash fl ows from:

 Operating activities $     20 $     17 $   137 $   119 $   107 $   53 $   264 $  189
 Financing activities
 -banker’s acceptances 25 — — — — — 25 —
 -cash dividends (12) (12) — — — — (12) (12)
 Investing activities 38 (63) (67) (9) (244) 20 (273) (52)

 Increase (decrease) in
 cash and cash
 equivalents $     71   $   (58) $     70 $   110 $  (137) $   73 $       4 $  125

The Company’s insurance subsidiaries meet their cash requirements primarily through funds generated 
by insurance operations. Each insurance subsidiary carries suffi cient excess capital to provide for 
additional cash requirements in the event of reasonably possible adverse claims experience or investment 
results.
At December 31, 2008, The Dominion of Canada General Insurance Company’s Minimum Capital 
Test was 182% and The Empire Life Insurance Company’s Minimum Continuing Capital and Surplus 
Requirements measure was 201%.
The Company receives dividends from its insurance subsidiaries. Such dividends are subject to restrictions 
imposed by the Insurance Companies Act, Canada to ensure that suffi cient excess capital remains on 
hand to fulfi ll policyholder obligations.

Dividends received by the Company from its insurance subsidiaries:

 (millions of dollars) 2008 2007

 The Dominion $     40 $     60
 Empire — 9

 Total $     40 $     69

6



Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Report on E-L Financial Corporation Limited (cont’d)

The Company’s corporate operating cash fl ows consist of net investment income from its Corporate 
Investments of $20 million (2007 - $17 million) and cash dividends received from its insurance subsidiaries 
of $40 million (2007 - $69 million). These cash fl ows, net of dividend payments made on the Company’s 
Common and Preference Shares of $12 million (2007 - $12 million) and cash infl ow from banker’s 
acceptances of $25 million (2007 – nil), made available $73 million (2007 - $74 million) for investment 
opportunities in 2008. The Company’s Corporate Investments liquidity position is $11.5 million in cash 
and cash equivalents at December 31, 2008 (2007 - $25.1 million).
Selected annual information 
A summary of various fi nancial data for each of the last three years is as follows:
 (millions of dollars, except per share amounts)

 2008 2007 2006
  Revenue
     Corporate Investments $       (181) $         30 $       224
    General Insurance 1,093 1,215 1,174
     Life Insurance 688 918 923
  $     1,600 $    2,163 $    2,321
  Net (loss) income
    Corporate Investments $       (161) $         22 $       177
    General Insurance (4) 145 150
     Life Insurance 38 44 46
  $       (127) $       211 $       373
  Assets
    Corporate Investments $     1,125 $    1,435 $    1,373
    General Insurance 2,650 2,817 2,630
    Life Insurance -  general fund 3,791 3,989 3,355
  -  segregated funds 3,349 4,594 3,848
    Total assets, including segregated funds $   10,915 $  12,835 $  11,206
  Per Common Share
     Net (loss) income - basic $   (41.20) $    60.29 $  109.97
  - diluted $   (41.20) $    57.37 $  104.21
     Cash dividends  $       0.60 $      0.60 $      0.60

Revenue
The revenue for the Company has decreased over the past two years primarily due to declines in the 
global stock markets in 2008 and the effect of the adoption of the Financial Instrument accounting 
standards effective January 1, 2007.
The Company’s equity method investment was signifi cantly impacted by the stock market volatility recording 
losses of $117.3 million in 2008 compared to a loss of $20.1 million in 2007 and income of $56.9 million 
in 2006. Revenue from the General Insurance operation in 2008 declined due to realized investment 
losses of $31.9 million compared to gains of $120.5 million in 2007 and $55.9 million in 2006.
Due to the Financial Instrument accounting standards changes in 2007, the change in unrealized 
appreciation of portfolio investments is no longer recorded in the consolidated statements of income, 
whereas in 2006, an increase in unrealized appreciation of portfolio investments of $125.0 million 
was included. Corporate Investments net income declined over the past two years as $91.0 million in 
realized losses were recognized in 2008 compared with gains of $20.2 million in 2007 and $17.4 million 
in 2006. The fair value change in held for trading assets had a signifi cant impact on the Life Insurance 
operation’s revenue where losses of $244.4 million were recorded in 2008 compared with a loss of 
$84.3 million in 2007.

7
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Net loss
The net income of the Company has declined for the past two years. Each of the segments was negatively 
impacted by the decline in global stock markets in 2008.
Corporate Investments net income is directly related to its revenue, which declined signifi cantly as 
previously discussed. 
Underwriting income for the General Insurance operations declined in 2006 and became underwriting 
losses in both 2007 and 2008. Realized investment gains in 2006 and 2007 increased in contrast to a 
realized investment loss in 2008. The overall net income for the Life Insurance operations decreased 
due to realized losses on the sale of investments during 2008 compared with realized gains that were 
recorded last year. This was partly offset by the overall net income from the Life Insurance operation’s 
three product lines which increased in 2008 relative to 2007 as the increase in Individual Insurance 
net income more than offset declines in Wealth Management and Employee Benefi ts net income. The 
increase in the Individual Insurance product line’s operating earnings overall was primarily attributable 
to the net release of reserves from the annual assumption update during 2008, including an updated 
approach for establishing the insurance mortality assumption and the effect of applying updated guidance 
regarding the calculation of the DFTL under Financial Instrument accounting rules.
Assets
On an overall basis, total assets of the Company have decreased in 2008 due to the decline in the global 
stock markets. Total assets increased in 2007 because they were adjusted to fair value as a result of the 
adoption of the Financial Instrument accounting standards as most fi nancial assets are now recorded 
at fair value commencing January 1, 2007. 
Declining global stock markets resulted in the portfolio investments decreasing from $1,097.9 million 
at December 31, 2007 to $878.9 million at December 31, 2008 and equity investment decreasing from 
$309.9 million at December 31, 2007 to $221.2 million at December 31, 2008.
The total assets of the General Insurance operations had increased in 2006 and 2007 as a result of 
investing retained earnings and, in 2007, as a result of adopting new fi nancial instrument accounting 
standards. In 2008, fair values on investments decreased, leading to a decrease in total assets.
Total assets for Life Insurance decreased during 2008 as assets under management declined by 16% 
during the year to $7.1 billion. Segregated fund assets were down 27% due primarily to the sharp decline 
in stock market prices partly offset by positive net sales results. Segregated fund assets for 2007 were 
up 19% due primarily to positive net sales results throughout the year. General fund assets for 2007 
increased signifi cantly as a result of adopting new Financial Instrument accounting standards.
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Summary of quarterly results
The following table summarizes various fi nancial results on a quarterly basis for the current and prior 
year:
 (millions of dollars, except per share amounts)

 March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 Total

 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

 Revenue $   476 $  513 $   487 $   415 $   266 $  512 $     371 $   723 $ 1,600 $2,163
 Net income $   (21) $    31 $     39 $     53 $   (25) $    20 $   (120) $   107 $  (127) $   211
 Net income
  per share
  - basic $(7.17) $ 8.43 $10.91 $15.30 $(8.28) $ 5.34 $(36.66) $31.22 $(41.20) $60.29
  - diluted $(7.17) $ 8.32 $10.91 $14.55 $(8.28) $ 5.34 $(36.66) $29.16 $(41.20) $57.37

The net income of the Company is expected to fl uctuate on a quarterly basis given its various segments.  
In particular, equity market movements, changes in interest rates and policy liability discount rates and 
policy reserve adjustments are likely to cause fl uctuations.  
During the fi rst quarter of 2008, the General Insurance operation’s underwriting income was negatively 
impacted by the high number of large property losses, a higher frequency of weather-related claims 
on personal property and automobile and a general increase in automobile claims frequency. The 
Corporate Investments portfolio decreased during the fi rst quarter of 2008 due to an $18 million loss 
from the equity method investment. 
The increase in net operating income for the second quarter of 2008 was primarily due to improved 
investment spreads in both the Wealth Management and Individual Insurance lines of the Life Insurance 
operations.
During the third quarter of 2008, the increase in net operating income was primarily due to improved 
investment spreads in the Individual Insurance line and a reserve release related to discounted future 
tax liabilities in the Life Insurance operation. The Corporate Investments segment showed increased 
losses in the third quarter of 2008 due to the decline in global stock markets.
Quarterly net income for the fourth quarter of 2007 was increased by the realization of signifi cant investment 
gains in the General Insurance operation compared to losses in the fourth quarter of 2008.
Share data
There are 4,019,409 Common Shares and 258 Series A Convertible Preference Shares issued and 
outstanding and each share is entitled to one vote. In addition, there are 4,000,000 First Preference 
Shares, Series 1 and 4,000,000 First Preference Shares, Series 2 issued and outstanding, which are 
non-voting.
Disclosure controls and procedures
The Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance 
that information required to be disclosed by the Company under Canadian securities laws is recorded, 
processed, summarized and reported within the specifi ed time periods, and include controls and procedures 
that are designed to ensure that information is accumulated and communicated to management on 
a timely basis to allow appropriate decisions regarding public disclosure. Under the supervision of 
management, an evaluation was carried out on the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls 
and procedures  as of December 31, 2008. Based on that evaluation, management concluded that the 
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as at December 31, 2008.
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Internal control over fi nancial reporting
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over fi nancial 
reporting to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of fi nancial reporting and the 
preparation of fi nancial statements for external purposes in accordance with GAAP. Under the supervision 
of management, an evaluation of the Company’s internal control over fi nancial reporting was carried 
out as at December 31, 2008. Based on that evaluation, management concluded that the Company’s 
internal control over fi nancial reporting was effective as at December 31, 2008. No changes were made 
in the Company’s internal control over fi nancial reporting during the year ended December 31, 2008, 
that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control 
over fi nancial reporting.
Conversion to IFRS
IFRS will replace Canadian GAAP for publicly accountable enterprises for fi scal years beginning on 
or after January 1, 2011. The Company will begin to report its fi nancial results, including comparative 
information, in accordance with IFRS in the fi rst quarter of 2011.
A steering committee comprised of senior management from the Company and its subsidiaries oversees 
the project and provides quarterly reports to the Company’s Audit Committee. Steering committee 
members and project staff continue to develop fi nancial reporting expertise in IFRS. 
Signifi cant changes to IFRS accounting standards are expected to be issued during the next two years 
and as a result, there is uncertainty regarding the expected accounting standards that will be in place in 
2011. In addition, the Company’s subsidiaries are federally regulated fi nancial institutions, and regulatory 
and capital requirements may also change in advance of 2011. The following disclosures refl ect the 
Company’s current expectations based on the information that is available as of this report’s date. As 
a result of changing circumstances during our transition, the Company may change accounting policy 
choices or elections initially selected.
The Company’s project plan includes four phases: analysis, design and planning, solution development 
and implementation. The analysis phase has been completed and the standards that are expected to 
have a signifi cant impact on the Company’s recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of 
its fi nancial statements have been identifi ed.  During 2009, preliminary accounting policy choices will be 
made based on the expected accounting requirements in 2011. Model fi nancial statement presentation 
and disclosures will be prepared in 2009 and system changes will be identifi ed. The Company is currently  
reviewing system changes resulting from the changeover to IFRS. Changes to internal controls over 
fi nancial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures will be identifi ed starting in 2009.  At this 
point in the project, the Company is not able to reasonably estimate the fi nancial reporting impact of 
the transition to IFRS. 
Outlook
The Company’s future earning prospects are dependant on the successful management of its Corporate 
Investments portfolio and on the continued profi tability of the two insurance company subsidiaries. The 
performance of the Corporate Investments portfolio is impacted by global securities markets and the 
selection of equity and fi xed income investments. The Company continues to maintain its strategy of 
accumulating shareholder value through long-term capital appreciation and dividend income. More 
information on the outlook for the insurance subsidiaries is provided in the Outlook sections of each of 
the insurance operation’s reports in the MD&A.
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The Dominion of Canada General Insurance Company (“The Dominion”) is a wholly owned subsidiary 
of E-L Financial Corporation Limited and is licensed to underwrite property and casualty (“P&C”) 
insurance in all jurisdictions in Canada.
Overview
The sharp decline in global equity markets in 2008 adversely affected The Dominion’s earnings and 
caused a signifi cant unrealized loss in the value of its investments in the fourth quarter and for the year. 
The Dominion incurred a net loss for 2008 of $4.0 million compared to net income of $144.6 million in 
2007. This decrease in earnings refl ects realized net investment losses in 2008 of $32.7 million (after 
tax) in contrast to realized investment gains of $99.5 million (after tax) in 2007, and deterioration in 
underwriting results. The combined ratio of 106.2 in 2008 deteriorated 3.3 points from 102.9 in 2007 
mainly due to an increase in weather-related property losses. Net unrealized loss on available for 
sale (“AFS”) investments (which comprise most of The Dominion’s investments) was $211.9 million 
(after tax) for 2008, compared to a net unrealized loss on AFS investments of $7.9 million (after tax) in 
2007.
In the fourth quarter of 2008, The Dominion incurred a net loss of $46.8 million compared to net income 
of $75.3 million in the fourth quarter of 2007. This change refl ects a net realized investment loss of 
$39.9 million (after tax) in the fourth quarter of 2008, versus net realized investment gains of $64.9 
million (after tax) in the prior year fourth quarter, as well as very poor underwriting results for the fourth 
quarter of 2008. The combined ratio for the fourth quarter of 2008 was 114.5, compared to 102.9 in the 
fourth quarter of 2007. The signifi cant underwriting loss for the fourth quarter in 2008 refl ects a sharp 
increase in weather-related property losses and increases in automobile claims frequency and severity, 
compared to the prior year’s fourth quarter.
Page 72 provides an overview of fi nancial results and position for the fi ve-year period from 2004 to 
2008.
Results of operations
The Dominion uses generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) and “non-GAAP” measures 
for assessing fi nancial performance. The “loss ratio” equals claims expense divided by net premiums 
earned. The “expense ratio” equals underwriting expenses (commissions, premium taxes and operating 
expenses) divided by net premiums earned. The “combined ratio” is the sum of the loss and expense 
ratios and is equal to the sum of claims and underwriting expenses divided by net premiums earned. 
These three ratios indicate how much of each net premium dollar earned in a period is used for claims 
and delivery costs. Provisions for unpaid claims are discounted, based on the market yields of support-
ing investments. Changes in the market yields of an insurer’s investments can lead to changes in the 
selected claims discount rate, which in turn results in unrealized gains or losses in unpaid claims and 
claims expense. Therefore, modifi ed loss and combined ratios, excluding the effects of changes in the 
claims discount rate, are also used to isolate underwriting results from the distorting effects of market 
interest rate volatility. These modifi ed ratios are non-GAAP measures that are not standardized and may 
not be comparable with measures used by other entities.
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The Dominion’s fi nancial results for 2008 and 2007, by major line of business, are summarized as 
follows:

   Commercial Property
 Automobile Personal Property  & Casualty Total

 (dollars in millions) 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
 Gross premiums written $  666 $  633 $  216 $  201 $  210 $  205 $1,092 $1,039
 Growth rate % 5.2 (2.5) 7.3 (0.6) 2.5  (0.9) 5.1  (1.8)
 Mix of business % 61 61  20 19  19  20  100  100
 Loss ratio % 76.7 74.8 89.9 73.0 53.9 58.8 75.1 71.5
 Loss ratio % - excluding
 change in discount rate 76.7 74.9 89.0 73.0 52.5 58.9 74.6 71.6

 Revenue
 Net premiums earned       $1,023 $   999
 Premium fi nance fee       13 13
 Investment income       89 83
 Net realized (loss) gains on sale of investments     (32) 120
        1,093 1,215
 Expenses
 Claims expense       769 715
 Other expenses, including premium taxes      319 313
 Income taxes       9 42
         1,097 1,070
 Net (loss) income       $      (4) $   145

The Dominion underwrites standard general insurance products concentrated in three geographic 
areas. The geographic mix of premiums in 2008 is unchanged from the prior year and is as follows: 
Ontario region 69%, Western region 20% and Atlantic region 11%. Product mix is fairly consistent 
across the regions, except that Western region has a higher proportion of property and casualty, due to 
British Columbia’s monopoly on basic automobile insurance coverage in that province. 
Total gross premiums written increased by 5.1% in 2008 (decrease of 1.8% in 2007) consisting of a 
2.7% increase in policies written (1.2% increase in 2007), a 2.7% increase in average premiums (1.3% 
decrease in 2007) and a 0.3% decrease from The Dominion’s share of Facility Association premiums 
(1.7% decrease in 2007). The net increase in policies written of 2.7% consists of 4.4% growth from 
brokers with whom The Dominion has an ongoing relationship, less a decrease of 1.7% in policies from 
brokers whose relationship with The Dominion has been terminated because they have become owned 
or controlled by competitor insurers. The Dominion’s strategy is to distribute solely through independent 
brokers who work in the best interests of their customers, free of confl ict, by providing independent 
advice, personalized service and a competitive choice of products, pricing and service from multiple 
insurers. In 2008, an increase in average premiums for personal lines out-weighed ongoing decreases 
in average premiums on commercial lines which remained soft in 2008. Despite the business lost in 
recent years from terminations of competitor-controlled brokers, The Dominion achieved its highest 
ever gross premiums written in 2008, excluding Facility business. 
Net premiums earned refl ects the earning of net premiums written on a straight-line basis over the terms 
of the individual policies. Approximately half of the premiums written in a calendar year are earned in 
that year and the rest are deferred as unearned premium, to be earned in the following year.
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The increase in the total company loss ratio mainly refl ects an increase in weather-related property 
damage claims and an increase in the Facility Association’s loss ratio. Net changes in the claims discount 
rates did not signifi cantly affect the total company loss ratios for both 2008 and 2007, nor the year over 
year change in the total company loss ratio from 2007 to 2008.
Automobile
Gross premiums written for automobile increased 5.2% in 2008 (decrease of 2.5% in 2007) consisting of 
a 1.8% increase in average premiums (0.9% decrease in 2007) and a 3.9% increase in policies written 
(1.3% increase in 2007), partly offset by a 0.5% decrease from Facility Association premiums (2.9% 
decrease in 2007). An increase in personal auto average premiums of 2.7% out-weighed decreases 
in commercial auto average premiums (a decrease of 3.6% in 2008) for an overall increase of 1.8% 
in total average premiums for auto insurance in 2008. Industry prices are beginning to increase for 
personal auto. Commercial price decreases are expected to subside and possibly reverse in 2009. The 
increase in policies written refl ects growth with existing and newly appointed brokers of 5.6% (3.9% 
increase in 2007), partly offset by a 1.7% decrease from the cancellation of contracts with brokers who 
became controlled by competitor insurers (2.6% decrease in 2007).
The 1.9 point increase in the 2008 automobile loss ratio compared to the prior year is due to deterioration 
in Facility Association’s results. The loss ratio on The Dominion’s share of Facility Association 
business was 119.7% in 2008 compared to 72.3% in 2007, which increased The Dominion’s overall 
automobile loss ratio by 2.3 points. Facility Association business is suffering from inadequate pricing 
and a decline in favourable claims development in 2008 versus 2007. Excluding Facility business, The 
Dominion’s automobile loss ratio improved slightly as a result of reductions in estimates for prior year 
claims recognized in 2008 that were greater than reductions recognized in 2007. Prior year claims 
development reduced automobile claims expense by $40.3 million in 2008 (6.6 points reduction to The 
Dominion’s loss ratio, excluding Facility Association business) compared to a reduction of $32.1 million 
(5.4 points) in 2007. The reduction in claims estimates recognized in 2008 is attributed to a changed 
view of uncertainty in the claims estimates for accident benefi t claims (injury benefi ts paid to our 
insureds) and third-party bodily injury claims (paid to persons injured by the actions of The Dominion’s 
at-fault policyholders), in both cases on claims occurring mainly in years 2005 to 2007. The favourable 
development recognized in 2007 was mainly in relation to accident benefi t claims and third-party bodily 
injury claims arising in accident years 2001 to 2006. Although we expect that the industry will continue 
to increase rates for automobile insurance in 2009, we also expect claims costs to continue to rise 
which may delay or dampen improvement in loss ratios. 
Personal property
Personal property premiums increased 7.3% in 2008 (decrease of 0.6% in 2007), consisting of a 6.1% 
increase in average premium (0.9% decrease in 2007) and a 1.2% increase in policies written (increase 
of 0.3% in 2007). The increase in average premiums refl ects brokers’ and underwriters’ efforts to 
increase policyholders’ coverage limits to match property values and increases in construction costs. 
This ongoing industry challenge of achieving “insurance to value” and the related increases in average 
premiums has been exacerbated by the industry’s recent price-competitive phase. The 1.2% increase 
in written policies consists of an increase of 3.0% from growth with existing brokers (2.4% increase 
in 2007) and a 1.8% reduction from cancelled contracts with competitor-controlled brokers (2.1% 
decrease in 2007).
The 16.9 point deterioration in the 2008 loss ratio refl ects an increase in weather-related property 
damage claims (adding approximately 11 points to the 2008 loss ratio) and increasing claims frequency 
(adding approximately 5 points). Favourable prior year claims development reduced personal property 
claims expense in 2008 by $5.0 million (2.6 points), compared to a reduction of $4.3 million (2.3 points) 
in 2007. Favourable development in 2008 refl ects better than expected experience from recent years 
in general and some large personal liability claims in particular. The 2007 development refl ected better 
than expected experience from various accident years.
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Commercial property and casualty
Commercial coverages are generally sold together in package policies. The Dominion’s commercial 
business is typically main-line, small to mid-sized exposures on the conservative end of the risk spectrum. 
Gross premiums written increased by 2.5% (decrease of 0.9% in 2007) refl ecting an increase in policies 
written of 4.7% (increase of 7.1% in 2007), partly offset by an average premium decrease of 2.2% 
(decrease of 8.0% in 2007). The 4.7% increase in policies written consists of 5.8% growth with existing 
brokers (9.2% increase in 2007), partly offset by a 1.1% decrease due to cancellations of contracts with 
competitor-controlled brokers (2.1% decrease in 2007). The strong policy growth refl ects continued 
market penetration of The Dominion’s E-Clips product package for small commercial business. The 
Dominion’s average premiums declined due to the increased proportion of E-Clips policies, which 
have lower average premiums than The Dominion’s overall average commercial premiums, and due to 
ongoing soft market price competition. 
The 2008 loss ratio decreased by 4.9 points compared to the loss ratio of 2007. The year over year 
improvement refl ects a decrease in claims expense for large losses (reducing the loss ratio by 5.5 points 
versus the prior year) and a larger reduction in prior year claims estimates recognized in 2008 than the 
reduction recognized in 2007 (4.3 point decrease), partly offset by an increase in weather-related water 
damage property claims (adding 2.7 points), a net decrease in the claims discount rate (adding 1.5 
points) and a general increase in claims frequency (adding 0.7 points). Favourable claims development 
of $26.2 million (reduction in the 2008 loss ratio of 14.2 points) was recognized in 2008 from better than 
expected experience and a changed view of uncertainty in general liability claims estimates, mostly 
from recent accident years. Favourable development of $18.0 million recognized in 2007 (reduction in 
the 2007 loss ratio of 9.9 points) arose partly from better than expected experience on property and 
general liability claims occurring in various recent years and partly from positive developments related 
to the settlement of sexual abuse claims arising in the years 1950 to 1980.
Expenses
The Dominion’s expense ratio decreased in 2008 by 0.3 points to 31.1, from 31.4 in 2007, due mainly 
to a decrease in broker commissions. Contingent profi t bonuses earned by brokers declined in 2008 as 
a result of an increase in loss ratios in 2008.
Investments, liquidity and capital resources
Investment income (interest and dividends) before income tax was $88.5 million in 2008, compared to 
$82.6 million in 2007 as a result of an increase in the average portfolio balance. The average of cash 
and investments (measured at cost or amortized cost) grew 8.0% in 2008 (8.3% increase in 2007) as a 
result of positive cash fl ow from operations. The average investment yield on an amortized cost basis 
remained unchanged at 3.8%. 
The net realized investment loss before tax was $31.9 million in 2008, compared to a net realized 
gain of $120.5 million in 2007. Realized investment gains and losses generally result from trading 
decisions which are intended to maximize the ongoing economic return of The Dominion’s portfolios 
and, accordingly, do not follow a predictable pattern from year to year. The majority of The Dominion’s 
realized investment gains and losses arise from its investments in several pooled funds which invest 
in common equities and are managed by third party investment managers. The net loss realized in 
2008 was mostly from the redemption of all of The Dominion’s units in one international equity pooled 
fund that was fi rst acquired in the third quarter of 2007. This fund’s loss in value mainly arose in 2008. 
The Dominion decided to redeem these units as a result of the fund’s recent investment decisions and 
resulting performance. The 2007 net realized gains arose from both capital gain distributions received 
from the pooled funds in the normal course and from redeeming some mutual fund units and investing 
the proceeds in units in other mutual funds managed by the third party manager; The Dominion has 
continued to own these units to the date of this report.
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During 2008 and to the date of this report, The Dominion has not held any asset backed commercial 
paper.
Positive cash fl ow from operations remained high in 2008 at $137.5 million, compared to $119.0 million 
in 2007. The Dominion paid dividends of $40.0 million in 2008 to E-L Financial, the sole shareholder 
($60.0 million in 2007). The Dominion’s investment maturity profi le allows for ongoing liquidity to be 
maintained such that The Dominion can operate for some time with minimal need to liquidate securities 
and thus minimize realized losses from disposal at unfavourable market values. At December 31, 2008, 
the investment portfolio mix included 13% in cash and short-term investments (2007 – 8%), 56% in 
bonds (2007 – 55%) and 28% in preferred stocks and in pooled funds that invest in common equities 
(2007 – 35%). As at December 31, 2008, in addition to cash and short-term investments, 14% of The 
Dominion’s bonds have a maturity date within one year (2007 – 15%).
The Dominion’s shareholder capital consists mainly of retained earnings and is invested 86.7% in 
third-party pooled funds that hold common stock; the remainder is invested in bonds. The Dominion’s 
capital has exceeded the requirements of the Insurance Companies Act and regulations throughout 
2008 and to the date of this report. Capital adequacy is predominantly determined by the Minimum 
Capital Test (“MCT”), a calculation defi ned by the Offi ce of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions, 
the regulator of federal fi nancial institutions. The MCT is the ratio of regulatory capital available divided 
by regulatory capital required and is reported to the federal regulator in a prescribed fi ling each quarter. 
The federal regulator has established a supervisory target MCT result of 150% to provide a safety 
buffer above the legally required minimum MCT of 100%. At December 31, 2008, The Dominion’s MCT 
was 182% (which equates to over $100 million of excess capital above the regulator’s supervisory 
target), compared to an MCT of 227% at the end of 2007. The decrease refl ects the 2008 dividend 
and the signifi cant unrealized loss on the investments in pooled funds, refl ecting the decline in global 
stock markets. Management regularly monitors the sensitivity of The Dominion’s capital to potential 
threats from negative claims development, declines in investment values and operating leverage (ratio 
of premiums to capital). The Dominion’s decisions regarding investments and declaration of dividends 
will continue to be made with the intention of maintaining suffi cient regulatory capital.
Other comprehensive loss
In 2008 The Dominion incurred an other comprehensive loss after tax (“OCL”) of $215.0 million ($110.6 
million OCL in 2007), consisting of net unrealized losses after tax of $211.9 million (net losses of $7.9 
million in 2007) and a $3.1 million after tax reclassifi cation adjustment for the net realized investment 
gains recognized in net income in the year (net loss of $102.7 million in 2007). Most of the net unrealized 
losses relate to the pooled fund units that The Dominion continues to own, which decreased in value 
as a result of the decline in global equity markets in 2008. Comprehensive loss, which is the sum of net 
income and the other comprehensive loss, was $219.1 million after tax in 2008 (comprehensive income 
of $34.0 million in 2007). 
Unused tax losses
The realized loss on the sale of pooled fund units recognized in net income in 2008 (discussed above 
under “Investments, liquidity and capital resources”) and the unrealized losses on the remaining pooled 
fund units recognized in other comprehensive income in 2008 (discussed in the previous paragraph) 
resulted in unused capital losses for tax purposes, and deductible temporary differences that will become 
unused capital losses for tax purposes when realized (collectively referred to as “unused tax losses”). To 
the extent that these unused tax losses are considered more likely than not to be recoverable, they are 
to be recognized in the future tax asset on the balance sheet and as tax recoveries in net income and 
other comprehensive income, as applicable. Due to uncertainty in the current economic environment 
regarding the earning of future taxable capital gains, against which to offset the losses, these unused 
tax losses have not been recognized in the consolidated fi nancial statements at December 31, 2008.

15



Report on General Insurance Operations (cont’d)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Based on tax laws and tax rates in effect on December 31, 2008, management estimated that the 
unrecognized tax recoveries, if they had been recognized in 2008, would have increased net income 
by $4.7 million, increased other comprehensive income by $28.3 million, and increased the future tax 
asset by $33.0 million.
On March 4, 2009, proposed amendments to the Income Tax Act passed third reading in the Canadian 
House of Commons. According to Canadian GAAP, once proposed tax amendments have passed 
third reading under a minority government, they are considered substantively enacted and their effect 
is to be recognized in an entity’s fi nancial statements. The effects of this subsequent event will be 
refl ected in the fi rst quarter of 2009. Under the amendments, the unrecognized capital losses described 
in the previous paragraph are re-characterized as income losses which may, therefore, be carried 
forward against future regular taxable income, such as underwriting income and interest income. 
Management’s assessment is that the unused tax losses are now, therefore, recoverable and will be 
recognized in the Company’s fi nancial statements in the fi rst quarter of 2009. In addition, the unused 
losses have become 100% deductible as income losses, instead of being 50% deductible as capital 
losses. Based on the December 31, 2008 fair value of the pooled fund units, management estimates 
that The Dominion’s future tax asset and net income would both increase by $66.0 million, which 
refl ects the fact that the unused tax losses are now 100% deductible. (The estimated $33.0 million 
unrecognized future tax asset referred to in the previous paragraph, was based on 50% deductibility in 
accordance with the tax rules in effect at December 31, 2008). Although the majority of the unused tax 
losses arise from unrealized losses recorded in other comprehensive loss, under GAAP the recognition 
of these previously unrecognized tax losses will be refl ected in net income, not in other comprehensive 
income.
Industry dynamics and management’s strategy
The function of a P&C insurer is to pool the risks of its policyholders, collecting a premium from each 
in order to fund the covered claims of the few. Premiums, less underwriting expenses (commissions, 
operating expenses and premium taxes), are invested (the “insurance fl oat”) until they are used to pay 
claims. In most years, the Canadian P&C industry produces an underwriting loss, which is the excess of 
claims and underwriting expenses over net premiums earned. An insurer generates a margin on insurance 
operations by earning investment income on the insurance fl oat that exceeds the underwriting loss. This 
margin on the insurance fl oat is in addition to the investment return earned on other investments which 
are held in support of shareholder capital. P&C insurers generally require relatively little working capital 
as a result of collecting premiums in advance of paying claims. The function of shareholder capital is to 
provide a buffer for large unusual losses or in the event that existing provisions for net unpaid claims 
prove to be inadequate. Regulators establish minimum capital requirements for insurers to maintain. 
The industry’s annual profi tability improves and deteriorates progressively in a wave-like fashion, 
commonly referred to as the insurance cycle. The key drivers of the insurance cycle are (i) the lag in 
measuring the ultimate cost of each year’s claims, and the resultant challenge of adjusting prices until 
they are adequate, (ii) fl uctuations in investment returns, which subsidize underwriting results, and 
(iii) the relentless downward pressure on margins from a high level of price competition in this mature 
industry. Price competitiveness intensifi es when profi ts are high, or are expected to be, and when 
capital is strong and vice versa. The average duration of an insurance cycle in Canada is seven years. 
As a result of the large cyclical swings in annual earnings, a P&C insurer’s results must be assessed 
over the course of a cycle, and not strictly on an annual basis.  
The global fi nancial crisis has adversely impacted The Dominion’s investments in pooled funds that invest 
in common equities and has caused management to moderate increases in staff and compensation 
costs. However, the emerging recession is not expected to prevent the industry’s transition from a soft 
to hard market in the short term. Signs of price hardening in the industry were emerging during 2008. 

16



Report on General Insurance Operations (cont’d)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Management expects that the current economic situation will allow industry prices to increase in most 
lines in 2009. However, as Canadian business activity declines during the recession, it is likely that the 
effect of price increases will be muted by a reduction in the amount of insurance coverage sold. 
The Dominion’s growth strategy is to maintain suffi cient size and presence in the marketplace in order 
to be relevant to brokers so that they continue to grow their business with us. Accordingly, premium 
growth is subject to optimizing earnings growth over time, while maintaining a relevant presence with 
independent brokers, our sole distribution channel. The Dominion’s relationship with brokers is important 
for success. Management seeks to grow its goodwill with brokers by being a supportive partner in 
supplying their customers with reliable, consistent service at a fair price. An important goal in The 
Dominion’s technology development activities is improving brokers’ ease of doing business with The 
Dominion. As a Canadian-owned and managed insurer, The Dominion seeks to provide brokers with 
responsive, regionally-sensitive, “made-in-Canada” decision-making, in contrast to the many foreign-
controlled insurers that comprise a large portion of the Canadian market. 
The Dominion seeks to deliver high quality claims service in order to attract and retain policyholders 
and preserve the support of our brokers. Management’s claims settlement philosophy is to consistently 
provide quality service in every interaction with a claimant, regardless of the size or type of claim. We 
emphasize pro-active communication to claimants regarding the claims process and what they can 
expect, as well as providing an empathetic and comfortable experience. We will not overpay a claim 
in the name of service, since that unfairly increases the cost of insurance to all policyholders. To meet 
ever-increasing service expectations, claims management continues to build a culture where quality 
service and continuous improvement are valued and rewarded. 
Risk management
The key risk exposures and performance drivers of a P&C insurer are appropriate pricing, competent 
and effi cient distribution, effective underwriting (the acceptance of “risks” and properly classifying them), 
product management (policy terms and conditions), appropriate response to political and regulatory 
developments, customer service to policyholders and claimants, conservative claims provisioning, 
skilled human resources, cost control, sensible use of technology, and successful management of 
capital, comprising investments and reinsurance. Some insurers write specialized, less understood 
risks and generate their margin from being a niche supplier. The majority of insurers, including The 
Dominion, focus on standard price-sensitive products and generate a margin from strong risk selection 
and effi cient execution. One notable complication to the otherwise commodity nature of automobile 
insurance is that the product is frequently changed by provincial governments, making it more diffi cult to 
estimate claims and determine pricing assumptions. Management continuously reassesses and adapts 
its strategies in response to industry dynamics and in anticipation of emerging trends. The Dominion’s 
strategies and results for the key performance drivers are discussed in the relevant sections of this 
MD&A. 
For personal lines and some commercial products, The Dominion sets premium rates based on actuarial 
analysis and consideration of competitive market forces. Personal and some commercial automobile 
premium rates are subject to provincial regulatory approval which in most provinces involves varying 
degrees of review of supporting assumptions. Some commercial products are priced by individual 
underwriters, as part of the underwriting process. Our pricing strategy is to maintain stable prices for 
our policyholders, as much as possible, while obtaining price adequacy in each segment, as the market 
allows. Standard P&C products are, however, very price sensitive and management carefully considers 
the impact of price increases on policyholders whom we seek to retain.
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The Dominion distributes solely through independent brokers, the largest distribution channel for P&C 
insurance products in Canada. Accordingly, The Dominion’s success in the short-term is contingent 
on the ongoing success of brokers and on management’s ability to respond to threats to the broker 
distribution channel. The Dominion continues to terminate relationships with brokers that become 
controlled or acquired by competitor insurers. Truly independent brokers advocate the interests of their 
customers and offer genuine product choice, in contrast to captive agents or brokers working for, or 
owned by, an insurer. 
Accurate estimation of unpaid claims and reinsurance recoverable is important for measuring fi nancial 
results, understanding claims costs and trends, establishing appropriate prices and for developing 
or changing insurance products. Management’s provisions for unpaid and unreported claims and 
reinsurance recoverable are based on actuarially determined estimates for all costs of investigation 
and settlement of claims occurring prior to year end. Ultimate costs incurred will inevitably vary from 
current estimates. A detailed description of The Dominion’s claims provisioning process is provided 
below under “Critical accounting estimates.”
The Dominion enters into reinsurance agreements with other insurers in order to limit its exposure to 
signifi cant losses. Reinsurance does not relieve The Dominion of its primary liability as the originating 
insurer. The Dominion’s reinsurance coverage is in the form of excess of loss treaties that provide 
coverage above a deductible (“retention”) up to the treaty limits, per claim or, in the case of the 
catastrophe treaty, for the aggregate loss of series of claims arising from a single event up to a specifi ed 
limit. Management selects the catastrophe treaty limit based on analysis using several catastrophe 
models. The catastrophe limit has been increased from $500 million for 2008 to $600 million for 
2009. Reinsurance treaties typically renew annually and the terms and conditions are reviewed by 
the reinsurance committee and reported to The Dominion’s Board. Management reviews the fi nancial 
performance and condition of reinsurers annually and only reinsurers that have an ‘A’ credit rating, or 
better, are accepted on our reinsurance program as it renews each year. In the 2009 renewal process, 
management’s review of the investment profi les of reinsurers paid particular attention to those who 
have been reported to have suffered, or may be exposed to, large investment losses. Management is 
satisfi ed that reinsurers on its program continue to have acceptable fi nancial strength. The Dominion 
writes personal and commercial property business in British Columbia and, accordingly, is exposed to 
loss from a major earthquake. In addition to carrying appropriate reinsurance coverage, management 
mitigates this exposure through strict underwriting guidelines, effective use of deductibles, adequate 
pricing and management of the earthquake exposure capacity allocated to each broker. The Dominion’s 
fi nancial preparedness for an earthquake exceeds the federal regulator’s requirements. 
Facility Association is a mandatory insurance pool that is funded by all private automobile insurers to 
provide insurance to drivers who cannot obtain coverage from private insurers. Facility also operates 
risk sharing pools (“RSP”) in some provinces into which insurers may transfer qualifying policies which 
they have issued directly. Each insurer services its RSP policies and settles any claims, but the fi nancial 
results are combined in the risk sharing pools. Facility determines the results of its operations based on 
its own actuarial valuations and allocates its results to private insurers, mainly based on market share. 
Insurers rely on Facility’s reports in recording their share of Facility results. Given the nature of Facility’s 
business, its results are volatile and can have a material effect on The Dominion’s net income. 
The Dominion settles certain claims involving a long-term payment stream by purchasing an annuity 
from a life insurer that will pay out the claim to the claimant. Most of these claims involve long-term 
payments for those injured in an automobile accident. These “structured settlements” result in the 
removal of the liability from the consolidated balance sheet. However, on most of these structured 
settlements, The Dominion retains a residual off-balance sheet contingent liability in that it guarantees 
to pay the remaining obligations of the annuity in the event that the life insurer cannot. The Dominion 
uses only credit-worthy federally-regulated life insurers and considers this credit risk to be negligible.
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The Property and Casualty Insurance Compensation Corporation (“PACICC”) is a regulated entity 
that funds losses sustained by policyholders, within limits, in the event of an insurer insolvency. The 
Dominion has ongoing exposure to fund its portion, based on market share, of covered losses of an 
insolvent insurer. The Dominion accrues its obligations at the time they become known. Occasionally 
PACICC refunds to insurers recoveries from the assets of entities in liquidation, which are recorded 
as reductions to expenses. The Dominion’s contingent obligation to PACICC results in an ongoing 
exposure that could have a material impact on net income. 
Underwriting expenses consist of broker commissions, premium taxes and operating expenses. Broker 
commissions and premium taxes comprise approximately two thirds of underwriting expenses; most 
commissions and all premium taxes are based on fi xed percentages of the applicable premiums and, 
therefore, provide no opportunity for economies of scale. Included in commissions are contingent 
profi t bonuses which are earned by brokers, based mainly on the profi tability of their business to The 
Dominion, and which can produce variation in annual expense ratios. Operating expenses mainly 
consist of salaries and benefi ts and information technology costs which vary indirectly with business 
volume. Managing these operating expenses is important in this competitive industry. P&C insurance 
is a knowledge-based service. Skilled, experienced and effective personnel are important to The 
Dominion’s success. The Dominion’s human resource management practices focus on providing a 
positive work experience and maintaining a performance-based compensation program that is in line 
with the industry. Annual performance appraisals, annual salary reviews and bonus programs covering 
all levels of staff are geared toward promoting and rewarding employees. 
Technology is the other signifi cant operating expense for The Dominion. Beginning with its claims 
system in 2007, The Dominion has begun a multi-year project to replace its legacy systems in discrete 
phases that produce incremental improvements within a disciplined annual budget. In addition, ongoing 
development effort is focused on complying with regulatory changes, enhancing “ease of doing business” 
for brokers, product enhancement and development, and improving operating effi ciency.
The Dominion manages its investments to provide for the payment of policy liabilities and to provide a 
return on shareholder’s equity. Investing activities are governed by the Insurance Companies Act and by 
investment guidelines established by the Investment Committee of The Dominion’s Board of Directors. 
Investment managers report quarterly to the Investment Committee on investment performance and 
outlook. Policy liabilities are supported by fi xed income investments, predominantly government bonds 
and high quality corporate bonds and preferred shares. The focus of these investments is on safety of 
principal and generating a reasonable interest yield. Given the relatively short average duration of The 
Dominion’s policy liabilities (which is approximately four years), strict asset and liability matching is not 
optimal since it would result in a relatively low investment yield from short-duration assets. Instead, The 
Dominion manages the average duration of its bond portfolio within a broad range, between 50% to 
300% of the duration of claims liabilities, to permit the pursuit of higher yields which are usually available 
in the longer portion of a normal yield curve. At December 31, 2008, the bond duration of 3.3 years 
(2007 – 3.7 years) is 85% (2007 - 90%) of the net unpaid claims average duration of 3.9 years (2007 
- 4.1 years). Volatility in market interest rates and stock market prices can have a signifi cant impact 
on the market value of the investment portfolio. The Dominion’s fi xed income investment managers 
proactively monitor market conditions and make portfolio mix adjustments in anticipation of signifi cant 
market changes. Shareholder capital is invested mostly in third-party pooled funds which invest in 
common stocks and some fi xed income securities which are managed from a longer term perspective. 
Emphasis is on quality and capital appreciation for stocks and on quality and higher yields for bonds.
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For a P&C insurer, maintaining adequate liquidity means earning suffi cient premiums and investment 
income to fund underwriting expenses and policy liabilities as they come due. The Dominion maintains 
liquidity in its investment portfolio by managing the maturity profi le to provide a steady cash fl ow from 
maturities; by holding high quality marketable investments that may easily be sold prior to maturity, if 
necessary (risk-free government bonds comprise approximately one quarter of the bond portfolio); and 
by maintaining a portion of investments in cash and short-term investments. 
The Dominion has not altered its overall investment strategy as a result of the current global credit crisis 
and the general decline in global stock prices. Investments held in support of insurance liabilities have 
not been signifi cantly affected. Consisting mainly of bonds, preferred shares and short-term securities, 
these investments continue to have a similar asset mix, diversifi cation and high liquidity profi le as in 
recent years. The main impact of the global fi nancial situation on The Dominion is a decline in the 
value of its pooled fund units (which hold common equities), which are held over the long term in 
support of shareholder’s equity. In 2008, these units sustained realized and unrealized losses totaling 
$225.9 million (32.2% of their prior year end market values). Management’s long term strategy of 
investing shareholder equity mainly in investments exposed to common equities remains unchanged. 
The Dominion continues to hold pooled fund units and anticipates eventual recovery in their value and 
continued capital appreciation over the mid-to-long term. 
Management regularly monitors and reports to The Dominion’s Board of Directors on the potential 
impact on capital adequacy of the main threats to fi nancial condition from increases in market interest 
rates, declines in common stock market values, deterioration in underwriting results and an increase 
in the ratio of premium to capital. Annually, the Appointed Actuary performs an analysis of the impact 
on capital adequacy of severe adverse scenarios as required by the federal regulator. This report is 
reviewed by management and The Dominion’s Board of Directors and is fi led with the regulator. These 
analyses demonstrate that The Dominion has suffi cient resources to withstand signifi cant adverse 
events. Management incorporates the implications of these analyses regarding changing risk factors in 
planning and forecasting. 
Critical accounting estimates
The fi nancial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
in Canada which require estimates and assumptions in determining amounts reported in the fi nancial 
statements. Note 3 to the consolidated fi nancial statements describes the signifi cant accounting 
policies. 
Policy liabilities
The most important accounting estimates arising from The Dominion’s business are the provisions for 
claims liabilities, consisting of the provisions for unpaid claims and for reinsurance recoverable. The 
provision for unpaid claims refl ects an estimate of the net present value of the ultimate cost of claims 
that have happened by the balance sheet date and the related expenses expected to be incurred to 
settle those claims. Reinsurance recoverable represents the amounts expected to be recovered from 
reinsurers for their share of The Dominion’s claims costs, in accordance with the terms and conditions 
of the reinsurance contracts. Many assumptions underlie these estimates such as claims frequency 
and severity, claims payment trends, infl ation and interest rates, potential changes in legislation, the 
interpretation of liability by the courts and reinsurers’ interpretations of coverage. Ultimate costs incurred 
will inevitably vary from current estimates. 
On a case-by-case basis, our claims adjusters use their experience and judgment and follow The 
Dominion’s documented claims reserving philosophy to enter a “case” reserve for each claim in our 
claims system (for certain claims the system automatically applies an average reserve established by 
our actuaries). Reserves are adjusted promptly as additional information becomes known that changes 
the adjuster’s view. The terms of the reinsurance treaties are applied to the case reserves, where 
applicable.
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The Dominion’s Appointed Actuary performs ongoing valuations to establish the provisions for unpaid 
claims and reinsurance recoverable. The actuarial valuations include analyzing case and average 
reserves, historical settlement patterns, estimates of trends in frequency and severity, trends in 
legal interpretations and other internal and external information. Projection techniques are applied 
to the company’s claims data to determine the ultimate costs, including a provision for claims that 
have occurred but have not yet been reported. The actuary’s valuation work is governed by accepted 
actuarial practice as established by the Canadian Institute of Actuaries. The provisions are discounted 
using discount rates that refl ect expected yields from supporting investments and include provisions 
for adverse deviation. When discount rates are decreased, the net unpaid claims balance increases 
(and vice versa) and this adjustment is included in claims expense in the period the discount rate is 
changed. Since most of the investments supporting The Dominion’s policy liabilities are valued at fair 
value on the consolidated balance sheet, the claims discount rate is based mainly on market interest 
rates which change frequently, resulting in frequent changes in the claims discount rate and in claims 
expense. Provisions for unpaid claims arising in prior years are also changed as a result of ongoing 
actuarial re-evaluations of expected ultimate payments and such changes are refl ected in the period in 
which they are determined. As required by the federal regulator, the Appointed Actuary’s valuation work 
is reviewed by an external actuary at least once every three years. Measurement uncertainty in these 
estimates arises from many internal and external factors, including changes to the product, regulations, 
internal claims handling procedures, economic infl ation and legal trends. The knowledge and judgment 
of senior management on these factors is taken into account in the actuary’s selection of assumptions 
where appropriate. 
A 5% variation in the net unpaid and unreported claims is a reasonably likely net change that could 
result from changes in the many assumptions that underlie these critical accounting estimates. A 5% 
change in the net unpaid claims balance (that is, unpaid and unreported claims less Reinsurance 
recoverable) would result in a change in claims expense of $70.8 million ($47.5 million after tax). One 
assumption with a pervasive effect on the net claims balance is the claims discount rate. A 1% change 
in the selected average discount rate results in a change in net unpaid claims of $37.4 million. 
Another important measurement uncertainty is the possible existence and magnitude of a “premium 
defi ciency” associated with premium liabilities. The Appointed Actuary determines whether unearned 
premiums reported on the balance sheet is a suffi cient provision for premium liabilities, that is, to 
cover the unrecorded claims and deferred acquisition costs that relate to the unexpired portion of the 
policies in force at the balance sheet date. If not, a “premium defi ciency” provision would be recognized 
as an expense in the income statement and, on the balance sheet, as a reduction to unamortized 
deferred policy acquisition expenses plus a separate liability for the amount of the defi ciency, if any, that 
exceeded deferred policy acquisition expenses. No premium defi ciency exists in 2008 and 2007. 
Valuation of investments
As a result of the recent decline in global stock prices, The Dominion’s investments in pooled funds 
that hold common shares declined in value by $193.1 million during 2008. These pooled fund units 
are classifi ed as available for sale and are refl ected at fair value on the balance sheet. The underlying 
shares held by these pooled funds are well diversifi ed by industry and country and are issued by 
high quality “large cap” entities that are actively traded on internationally recognized stock exchanges. 
Approximately half of the exposure is from Canadian issuers, one quarter from U.S. issuers and the 
rest from issuers in Europe, Japan and Asia. Management has reviewed its investment in pooled fund 
units for impairment and concludes that the unrealized losses on these units is temporary and that their 
values will recover when the current recession abates and investor confi dence returns to global equity 
markets. Accordingly, no impairment charge has been recorded in net income.
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Outlook
Much needed price hardening in the Canadian P&C industry is beginning to emerge in personal lines 
and is expected to continue in 2009; commercial lines industry prices are expected to begin to harden 
in 2009. However, price increases may be partly offset by a decrease in the amount of insurance 
coverage sold, resulting from a recessionary decline in Canadian business activity. Claims costs are 
expected to continue to increase in 2009 and may still outpace earned price increases, resulting in fl at 
or deteriorating loss ratios. Investment income will likely be depressed while a global recession runs its 
course. Management expects that improvement in industry results will likely occur in 2010, if not in late 
2009. The Dominion’s goal remains to pursue long term earnings growth by maintaining underwriting 
discipline and reasonable pricing throughout all phases of the market cycle.
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The Empire Life Insurance Company provides a broad range of life insurance and wealth management 
products, employee benefi t plans and fi nancial services to meet the needs of individuals, professionals 
and businesses through a network of Independent Financial Advisors (“IFA”), Managing General Agents 
(“MGA”), National Account fi rms and Employee Benefi ts brokers and representatives.
Overview
Empire Life reported shareholders’ net income of $3.4 million for the fourth quarter of 2008, compared 
to $24.4 million for the fourth quarter of 2007. For the year shareholders’ net income was $48.4 million 
compared to $54.7 million in 2007.
For the fourth quarter, and the year, Capital and Surplus net income declined sharply relative to the comparable 
periods in 2007 as the declines in global stock markets resulted in realized losses on the sale of investments 
during 2008 compared to the realized gains that were recorded last year.
Empire Life has three product lines (Wealth Management, Employee Benefi ts and Individual Insurance). For 
the fourth quarter, and the year, product line net income increased relative to the same periods in 2007 
as the increase in Individual Insurance net income more than offset declines in Wealth Management 
and Employee Benefi ts net income.
The net contribution to E-L Financial’s 2008 earnings, after adjustment for minority interests, was $38.5 
million ($43.6 million for 2007).
The risk based capital ratio at Empire Life, as measured by Minimum Continuing Capital and Surplus 
Requirements (“MCCSR”), at 201% at the end of the year was well above minimum requirements. During 
2008 the Offi ce of the Superintendent of Financial Institution (“OSFI”) issued updated guidelines and 
advisories for the calculation of MCCSR. Similar to most companies in the life insurance industry, the 
MCCSR ratio at Empire Life increased relative to the ratio that would have resulted under former guidelines 
and advisories.
During the fourth quarter, Empire Life completes its annual review and update of the actuarial assumptions 
underlying policy liabilities. E-L Financial’s net income after tax in 2008 was increased by $26.5 million due 
to the net release of policy liabilities resulting from the annual update of assumptions. Of this amount, $23.3 
million is non-recurring as it relates to an updated approach for establishing the insurance mortality 
assumption. While this amount is non-recurring regarding the existing block of business, the sales strain 
rate on new business in future years is expected to be reduced as a result of this approach to mortality 
assumptions. Otherwise, the net release was primarily a result of a reserve release resulting from improved 
mortality experience partially offset by reserve strengthening to refl ect lower future expected reinvestment 
rates. The net income increase in 2008 was an improvement over the 2007 increase in earnings of $0.6 
million that resulted from the annual assumption revision conducted during the fourth quarter of 2007.
Global credit and stock market conditions worsened during the second half of 2008, causing many companies 
to record impairment write-downs related to investments in global fi nancial services companies. While Empire 
Life reported unrealized losses in other comprehensive loss related to stocks and bonds, these losses 
were determined to be temporary. Empire Life had no impairment write-downs in 2008 related to “other 
than temporary” impairment of stocks or bonds and only a minor impairment provision change related to 
mortgages. Empire Life has minimal exposure to fi nancial services companies outside of Canada, with 
no direct exposure to the following: asset backed commercial paper, US mortgages or US mortgage 
related derivatives.
During 2008 there was uncertainty regarding the nature of, and the timing of substantive enactment of, 
proposed new federal income tax rules related to Financial Instrument accounting adopted in 2007.
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While there was uncertainty regarding the proposed new federal income tax rules in 2008, there has been 
a development regarding actuarial guidance. The Canadian Institute of Actuaries’ (“CIA”) Committee on 
Life Insurance Financial Reporting (“CLIFR”) has updated its guidance to Appointed Actuaries with regard 
to the calculation of the Discounted Future Tax Liability (“DFTL”) under Financial Instrument accounting 
rules. Previously, DFTL was determined using existing tax law and pre-2007 Financial Instrument 
accounting rules. Actuarial standards now permit recording the more conservative of the following:

(i) DFTL under existing tax law, and existing Financial Instrument accounting rules,
(ii) DFTL under proposed tax law, and existing Financial Instrument accounting rules. 

For Empire Life, item (i) is the more conservative of the two. However it is more favourable than the 
previous approach and accordingly Empire Life’s 2008 shareholders’ net income includes an after-tax 
gain of $15.0 million and policyholders’ net income includes an after-tax gain of $0.6 million related to 
this change in approach. These items were recorded in the third quarter. 
On March 4, 2009 the above mentioned tax rules were substantively enacted. As a result, Empire Life’s 
fi rst quarter 2009 net income is expected to include an after tax gain of $19.7 million for shareholders  
($15.7 million net contribution to E-L Financial’s earnings) and $13.5 million for policyholders.
Total assets under management declined by 16% during 2008 to $7.1 billion. Segregated fund assets were 
down 27% due primarily to the sharp decline in stock market prices partly offset by positive net sales results 
throughout the year. General fund assets decreased by 3% primarily due to declines in the fair value of 
invested assets due to rising corporate bond interest rates and falling stock markets. A decline in stock 
markets can impact the management fees collected on segregated fund contracts and on index funds 
within universal life contracts, and policy liabilities in respect of segregated fund guarantees.
Overall premium revenue in 2008 was up 9% from last year’s level as insurance premiums rose by 5% and 
annuity premiums increased by 29%.
During the fourth quarter of 2008, Empire Life introduced a new Guaranteed Minimum Withdrawal Benefi t 
segregated fund product, invested in risk management capabilities by developing a stochastic model 
approach and obtained OSFI approval for use of this model in support of this business line. Empire Life 
also developed a Tax Free Savings Account product for launch in early 2009.
The Summary of Life Insurance Operations on page 73 of this Annual Report provides an overview of results 
for the fi ve-year period from 2004 to 2008. The analysis and discussion which follow focus on the 2008 and 
comparative 2007 results for each of the major lines of business.
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Financial analysis
The following table and commentary analyze Empire’s fi nancial results for 2008 and 2007:
 Wealth Employee Individual Capital &
 Management Benefi ts Insurance Surplus Total

 (millions of dollars) 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

 Revenue
 Premium income $    116 $     91 $  270 $  254 $  299 $  286 $  — $   — $  685 $  631
 Fee and other income 94 97 6 5 2 2 1 1 103 105
 Investment income 50 52 6 5 90 84 25 24 171 165
 Realized gain on held for
  trading investments 4 6 1 1 15 55 — — 20 62
 Realized gain (loss) on
  available for sale
  investments 1 — — — (5) 4 (43) 35 (47) 39
 Fair value change in HFT
  assets (40) (20) (5) (1) (199) (63) — — (244) (84)

    225 226 278 264 202 368 (17) 60 688 918
 Expenses
 Benefi ts and expenses 220 214 267 246 114 377  2 1 603 838
 Income and other taxes (3) 2 8 10 40  —  (5) 17 40 29

     217 216 275 256 154  377 (3) 18 643 867

 Net income (loss) after tax $        8 $     10   $      3 $     8 $    48 $    (9) $ (14) $  42 $    45 51

  Policyholders’ portion          (3) (4)

 Shareholders’ net income          48 55
 Minority shareholders’
  portion of net income         10 11

 Net profi t contribution
  to E-L Financial         $    38 $    44

 Assets under  
  management
  General fund assets $    876 $    931
  Segregated fund assets $ 3,349  $ 4,594

 Annualized premium sales   $   40 $    46 $   72 $   88

Wealth management
Assets in Empire Life segregated funds decreased by 27% during the last twelve months. The decrease 
was attributable to overall negative investment returns, primarily in the second half, which more than offset 
positive net sales in each of the last four quarters. Net sales during 2008 were positive despite decreased 
gross sales, which were down 31% from 2007. General fund assets in this product line decreased by 6% 
during the past year.
Premium income for this product line is comprised solely of new deposits on products with a guaranteed rate 
of return and excludes deposits on segregated fund products. Premium income in this product line was up 
29% compared to 2007 due to increased sales of both deferred and immediate annuities. Fee and other 
income declined in 2008 relative to 2007 as management fees earned on segregated funds declined due to 
the impact of falling stock markets on assets under management. Revenue also declined relative to 2007 
due to the negative fair value change in assets that resulted primarily from a rise in market interest rates 
since the beginning of the year. The fair value change in assets was primarily related to bonds matched 
to policy liabilities and did not have a signifi cant impact on net income due to the corresponding change in 
policy liabilities.
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Net income was slightly lower than the level this product line achieved in 2007. Net income on in-force 
business was down $6.9 million from 2007 as a result of the decline in segregated funds under management 
and down $5.4 million primarily due to experience losses on segregated fund death benefi t guarantees. 
These unfavourable items were partially offset by improved net income from additional investment spreads 
of $5.9 million on guaranteed interest products, a one-time increase in net income of $3.0 million during the 
second quarter resulting from an industry change in the taxation of segregated fund deferred acquisition 
expenses and a reserve release related to DFTL that improved this product line’s net income by $2.5 
million (see Overview for further details).
Employee benefi ts
Weaker sales throughout the year resulted in annual sales for this product line that were 13% lower than 
2007. Despite this decline, this product line’s year-to-date premium income increased by 6% relative to 
2007 due to continued favourable persistency.
Earnings for this product line declined versus the comparable period in 2007 due to unfavourable claims 
results during the fi rst half of the year. For the year, claims results were down $5.1 million from the favourable 
level of claims results in 2007
Individual insurance
Sales in this product line were 19% lower than in 2007, primarily as a result of decreased investment deposits 
on universal life sales. Premium revenue for this product line was 4% higher than 2007 as the impact 
of the decline in sales for the current year was more than offset by the ongoing premium revenue from 
the increased sales during the latter portion of 2007. For this product line, realized gains or losses on 
assets sold and fair value changes in assets are primarily related to gains or losses on bonds and stocks 
matched to policy liabilities and do not have a signifi cant impact on net income due to corresponding 
changes in policy liabilities.
This product line’s 2008 net income increased relative to 2007. This increase was primarily a consequence 
of actuarial assumption updates. During the fourth quarter, Empire Life completes its annual review and 
revision of the actuarial assumptions underlying policy liabilities. Current year net income for this line of 
business was increased by $35.3 million relative to last year due to the net release of policy liabilities resulting 
from the annual update of assumptions. Of this amount, $29.3 million for shareholders and $0.4 million 
for policyholders is non-recurring as it relates to an updated approach for establishing the insurance 
mortality assumption. While this amount is non-recurring regarding the existing block of business, the 
sales strain rate on new business in future years is expected to be reduced as a result of this approach to 
mortality assumptions. The balance of the net release was primarily a result of a reserve release resulting 
from improved mortality experience over the past several years partially offset by reserve strengthening to 
refl ect lower future expected reinvestment rates. The net income increase in 2008 was an improvement over 
the 2007 increase in earnings of $1.4 million that resulted from the annual assumption update conducted 
during the fourth quarter of 2007.
Earlier this year net income for this product line increased relative to the comparable periods of 2007 due 
to a reserve release related to DFTL that improved this product line’s net income by $13.1 million (see 
Overview for further details). The balance of the increase in net income was primarily attributable to $18.9 
million from improved future investment returns on assets acquired during the year and the reduction in 
new business strain of $9.4 million relative to 2007 due to the decline in sales.
These favourable items were partially offset by a decrease in net income of $17.9 million relative to 2007 due 
to experience losses primarily resulting from both unfavourable mortality results in 2008 and unfavourable 
universal life results due to the impact of poor stock market conditions in 2008 on the outlook for management 
fee spreads.
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Capital and surplus
In addition to the three major lines of business, Empire Life maintains distinct accounts for the investment 
income attributable to Policyholders’ Surplus and to Shareholders’ Capital and Surplus. 2008 Capital and 
Surplus earnings decreased relative to the comparable period of 2007 as a result of the realized losses 
incurred on the sale of investments during 2008 compared to the realized gains recorded during 2007.
Liquidity and capital resources
Empire Life maintains a high level of liquid assets in its general fund so that cash demands can be readily 
met. At the end of 2007 and 2008, total liquid assets were more than double total demand liabilities.
During 2008, cash provided by operations was $106.6 million compared to $56.0 million in 2007. The 
increase in cash provided was primarily as a consequence of reduced commission expenses due to 
lower sales, and lower tax instalments.
Cash used for investment activities was $244.1 million in 2008 compared to cash provided by investment 
activities of $19.8 million in 2007. The increase in cash used for investment activities relative to 2007 
was primarily due to the investment of proceeds of the $125.0 million subordinated debt issue described 
below and investment of increased cash provided by operations. In addition, there have been increased 
net investment purchases in 2008 to take advantage of favourable investment spreads and reduced 
sales of portfolio investments in 2008 due to poor stock market conditions.
Cash provided from fi nancing activities during 2008 was $125.0 million versus cash used in 2007 of $11.8 
million regarding the payment of dividends. The change relative to 2007 was due to the aforementioned 
debt issue and Empire Life’s decision to retain cash to fi nance operations growth rather than paying a 
dividend to common shareholders. Empire Life’s subordinated debt issued to E-L Financial and dividends 
paid to E-L Financial are fully eliminated in the consolidated fi nancial statements of E-L Financial.
Empire Life has a defi ned benefi t pension plan that moved into a defi cit position during 2008 as a result of 
the declines in global stock markets. Empire Life estimates that pension funding requirements will rise by 
$7.0 million during 2009 and remain at the 2009 level for the years 2010 to 2013. The annual funding level 
is then expected to drop slightly beyond 2013.  
Empire Life continues to maintain a strong balance sheet and capital position. With a ratio of 201%, capital 
is well in excess of minimum regulatory requirements as measured by the Minimum Continuing Capital and 
Surplus Requirements (“MCCSR”). The “A (Excellent)” rating given to Empire Life by A.M. Best Company 
provides third party confi rmation of this strength. 
During 2008 OSFI issued updated guidelines and advisories for the calculation of MCCSR. Similar to most 
companies in the life insurance industry, Empire Life’s MCCSR ratio increased relative to the ratio that would 
have resulted under former guidelines and advisories
Other comprehensive income
All unrealized gains and losses on Capital and Surplus fi nancial assets are recorded as Other Comprehensive 
Income (“OCI”) or Other Comprehensive Loss (“OCL”). For the fourth quarter, and the year, net unrealized 
losses on these assets resulting from the large decline in global stock markets, net of the realized losses 
reclassifi ed from OCL to net income, resulted in an increased OCL relative to the comparable periods last 
year. After consideration of minority interests and participating policyholders’ interests, the net result was 
OCL of $33.7 million for the fourth quarter and OCL of $79.0 million for the full year.
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Industry dynamics and management’s strategy
Empire Life operations are organized by product line with each line of business having responsibility for 
product development, marketing, distribution and customer service within their particular markets. This 
structure recognizes that there are distinct marketplace dynamics in each of the three major product lines. 
Management believes this structure enables each line of business to develop strategies to achieve the 
enterprise-wide objectives of business growth and expense management while recognizing the unique 
business environment in which each operates. The lines of business are supported by corporate units that 
provide product pricing, administrative and technological services to the lines of business, manage invested 
assets, and oversee enterprise risk management policies.
Based on revenue, Empire Life is among the ten largest life insurance companies in Canada. Empire Life has 
less than six per cent market share in all three of its product lines. To be priced reasonably competitively in 
the marketplace while simultaneously providing acceptable long-term fi nancial contribution to shareholders, 
Empire Life, as a mid-sized company, must fi nd a way to be cost competitive with the larger companies that 
have some natural economy of scale advantages. In order to improve its unit expenses, management’s 
enterprise-wide strategic focus has been on steady growth in its selected markets and on expense management. 
Empire Life has focused exclusively on the Canadian marketplace and within it, on particular market segments 
where management feels there are opportunities to build solid, long-term relationships with independent 
distribution partners by offering competitive products and more personal service. By focusing on particular 
market segments and by being seen by these independent advisors as a viable alternative to a shrinking 
number of broadly focused competitors, we believe these solid relationships will enable sustainable growth 
at above industry average levels and ultimately result in competitive unit expenses.
The Wealth Management product line at Empire Life is comprised of segregated fund products and guaranteed 
interest products. These products compete against those offered not only by other life insurers but also by 
a variety of other fi nancial institutions. A key element of any competitive strategy in this market is providing 
a competitive rate of return to clients. The value oriented equity investment strategy used by Empire Life 
has resulted in an above average long-term return track record in the fund marketplace. We are expecting 
to continue to take advantage of this competitive track record and thus grow our market share through 
broadened distribution reach coupled with the addition of new funds and fund products.
Within the broader employee benefi ts marketplace in Canada, Empire Life continues to focus on the small 
group market comprised of employers with fewer than two hundred employees. This niche strategy coupled 
with an ongoing focus on balancing growth and profi t has enabled Empire Life to be cost competitive within 
this market segment and is expected to enable this product line to continue to grow its market share while 
generating acceptable returns.
Individual Insurance products are very long-term in nature and consequently can be subject to signifi cant 
levels of new business strain. New business strain occurs when the provision for adverse deviation included 
in the actuarial policy liabilities exceeds the profi t margin in the product pricing. Unless a company opts for 
increased levels of reinsurance, current price levels in the Canadian marketplace create signifi cant new 
business strain that has a negative impact on short-term earnings. Rather than give up the future earnings 
that would emerge if the trend in mortality improvement witnessed in recent decades continues, Empire 
Life continues to utilize lower than average levels of reinsurance with the resultant negative impact on 
short-term earnings. Because of the reasonable long-term returns of this product line, we continue to focus 
on steady growth, technology development and process improvement in order to continue to improve this 
product line’s unit expenses and maintain a competitive market position while generating acceptable long-
term fi nancial contribution.
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Risk management
Empire Life faces a broad range of risks and uncertainties in its day-to-day operations. The main risks can 
be classifi ed into three categories: investment risks, insurance risks and other risks. As part of our risk 
management practices, we have implemented and maintained a program based upon the standards of 
sound business and fi nancial practices that was previously prescribed by regulatory authorities.
Investment risks are centred on the performance of Empire Life’s investment portfolio, which is affected 
by general economic and stock market conditions. Empire Life’s general fund investments are subject to 
Investment Guidelines that are reviewed and approved by the Investment Committee of the Board. The 
Guidelines are intended to limit overall investment risk by setting out eligible investments, diversifi cation 
criteria and investment objectives for various asset classes. A decline in stock markets can impact the 
return on assets backing capital, the management fees collected on segregated fund contracts and on 
index funds within universal life contracts, and policy liabilities in respect of segregated fund guarantees.  
Empire Life also makes use of stochastic models to monitor and manage risk associated with segregated 
fund guarantees. For all items other than segregated fund guarantee policy liabilities, Empire Life estimates 
that without considering subsequent market returns, an immediate ten per cent decline in the stock market 
as at December 31, 2008 would result in a decrease to E-L Financial’s net income of approximately 
$4.9 million and a decrease to E-L Financial’s OCI of approximately $15.7 million. For segregated fund 
guarantee policy liabilities the direction of the stock market change impacts the amount, such that a 10% 
increase in market prices would have a positive impact of approximately $3.7 million on E-L Financial’s 
net income, while a 10% decrease in market prices would have a negative impact of approximately $16.2 
million on E-L Financial’s net income. For segregated fund guarantee policy liabilities the level of sensitivity 
is highly dependent on the level of the stock market at the time of performing the estimate. At lower market 
starting points the sensitivity is increased, while higher starting points have the opposite effect.
Investment risks also include credit, interest rate, liquidity and foreign exchange risks. Management and 
Board committees review credit quality relative to investment purchases and also monitor the credit quality 
of invested assets over time. Empire Life has an asset-liability management committee, which reports 
regularly to the Investment Committee of the Board, and monitors the matched position of investments to 
the liabilities within the various segments of Empire Life’s operations. The matching process ensures that 
assets supporting policy liabilities closely match the timing and amount of policy obligations as well as provide 
the appropriate amount of liquidity. This process addresses the management of interest rate risk, which is 
the risk of economic losses due to the need to reinvest or divest during periods of changing interest rates, 
and liquidity risk. The matching process also monitors and aligns the foreign currency position of the assets 
with the liabilities within the various segments thus managing the risk emanating from changes in foreign 
exchange rates. As part of its matching program, Empire Life uses derivative instruments, including futures 
contracts and foreign currency forward contracts, to manage interest rate and foreign exchange risks. To 
manage the risk associated with the use of these instruments Empire Life’s asset-liability matching committee 
has established policies and procedures including the establishment of authorized types and applications 
for derivatives, monitoring systems, and authorization limits for specifi c personnel. Empire Life estimates 
that an immediate one per cent parallel decrease in interest rates as at December 31, 2008 would result in 
a decrease to E-L Financial’s net income of approximately $23.7 million and an increase to E-L Financial’s 
OCI of approximately $4.3 million.
Insurance risks, which include product design, pricing, underwriting and liability risks, are based on the risk 
that actual experience in the future will not develop as estimated. In addition to the possibility that investment 
returns will differ from expected returns due to the investment risks noted above, Empire Life is subject to 
the risk that experience on claims, policy lapse rates and operating expenses will not emerge as expected. 
As prescribed by regulatory authorities, the Appointed Actuary reports annually to the Audit Committee of 
the Board on Empire Life’s fi nancial condition, outlining the impact on capital levels should future experience
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be adverse. As part of the standards of sound business practices program, management has developed a 
product design and pricing policy as well as an underwriting and liability management policy for each of its 
major product lines. Reinsurance is used to mitigate excessive exposure to adverse mortality and morbidity 
experience. Management reviews and establishes retention limits for its various product lines and the Board 
of Directors approves changes to these retention limits. As reinsurance does not release a company from its 
primary commitments to its policyholders, Empire Life reviews the fi nancial soundness of reinsurers before 
entering into any reinsurance treaty and thereafter once a treaty is in place.
Other risks include internal control, business interruption and regulatory risks. An internal audit function 
monitors the effectiveness of the internal controls developed by management and reports its fi ndings to the 
Audit Committee of the Board. A business continuity program, including the availability of off-site system 
recovery facilities, is in place to minimize the impact in the event of a major disruption (including the onset 
of a pandemic in Canada) so that key business functions can continue and normal operations can resume 
effi ciently.  Management has established a compliance program and has appointed a chief compliance offi cer 
and compliance offi cers in each business unit to manage regulatory risk, and provides a regular report to 
the Audit Committee of the Board on regulatory compliance.
Critical accounting estimates
The Company’s signifi cant accounting policies are described in Note 3 to the fi nancial statements. Certain 
of these policies require management to make estimates and assumptions about matters that are inherently 
uncertain. The most critical of these estimation processes for Empire Life are the valuation of policy liabilities 
and the determination of allowances for impaired investments.
Policy liabilities
The determination of policy liabilities requires best estimate assumptions that cover the remaining life of the 
policies for mortality, morbidity, investment returns, persistency, expenses, infl ation and taxes and include 
consideration of related reinsurance effects. Due to the long-term risks and measurement uncertainties 
inherent in the life insurance business, a margin for adverse deviation from best estimates is included in 
each assumption. These margins allow for possible deterioration in future experience and provide for greater 
confi dence that policy liabilities are adequate to pay future benefi ts. The resulting provisions for adverse 
deviations have the effect of increasing policy liabilities and decreasing the income that otherwise would have 
been recognized at policy inception. A range of allowable margins is prescribed by the Canadian Institute 
of Actuaries. Assumptions are reviewed and updated at least annually and the impact of changes in those 
assumptions is refl ected in earnings in the year of the change.  Empire Life has estimated that a decrease 
(increase) in the individual insurance mortality rate assumption equal to 3% of the base table would result 
in an increase (decrease) in E-L Financial’s net income of approximately $20.5 million.
Allowances for impaired investments
Empire Life maintains a prudent policy in setting the allowance for impaired investments. When there is no 
longer reasonable assurance of full collection of loan principal and loan interest related to a mortgage or 
policy contract loan, management establishes a specifi c allowance for loan impairment and charges the 
corresponding reduction in carrying value to income in the period the impairment is identifi ed. In determining 
the estimated realizable value of the investment, management considers a number of events and conditions. 
These include the value of the security underlying the loan, geographic location, industry classifi cation of the 
borrower, an assessment of the fi nancial stability of the borrower, repayment history and an assessment of 
the impact of current economic conditions. Changes in these circumstances may cause subsequent changes 
in the estimated realizable amount of the investment and thus to the specifi c allowance for impairment.
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Available for sale securities are subject to a regular review for losses that are other than temporary. If 
a security is assessed to have a loss that is other than temporary, the security is written down to fair 
value in the statement of general fund operations. Factors considered in determining whether a loss is 
temporary include the length of time and extent to which fair value has been below cost, the fi nancial 
conditions and near-term prospects of the issuer and the ability and intent to hold the investment for a 
period of time suffi cient to allow for recovery.
Outlook
The economic turmoil of 2008 mainly impacted Empire Life’s Wealth Management product line. Looking 
forward the impact on Wealth Management is expected to continue in 2009 and the Employee Benefi ts 
product line could also be negatively impacted depending on the severity and duration of the economic 
downturn. However, the Individual Insurance product line is less sensitive to stock market and employment 
conditions than these two product lines.  This diversifi cation places Empire Life in a more favourable position 
than some fi nancial services companies that depend exclusively on the wealth management business.
The landscape of the Canadian life insurance marketplace has changed dramatically since the beginning of 
the millennium as a result of demutualization and industry consolidation. While Empire Life, as a mid-sized 
life insurance company, has become more sensitive to pricing and strategic actions that can be employed 
by the three largest carriers who now have in excess of 60% of all major industry segments, the industry 
changes have also created opportunities. The demutualizations of fi ve Canadian mutual insurance companies 
that were completed in early 2000 have had a permanent effect on the industry as investor demand for 
immediate earnings growth has altered the way life insurance companies approach the business. Gone 
are the days where some product lines could get by without demonstrating a reasonable rate of return. 
Additionally, the downward pressure that new business strain puts on immediate earnings growth means that 
most companies have to choose between slowing down their individual life insurance growth and reinsuring 
a large portion of their new business to avoid the suppression of short-term earnings.
Nowhere has the impact of these industry changes been more evident than in the employee benefi ts product 
line. The trend to fewer players and ongoing pressure for reasonable rates of return on investments from 
each product line has led to higher prices and profi t margins in the employee benefi ts marketplace. As 
consolidation activity continues to slow down, employee benefi ts profi t margins should remain level provided 
a company can continue to improve operating effi ciency and offer the resultant economies of scale to the 
marketplace through lower expense charges. The focus at Empire Life on balanced growth and profi t, and 
its demonstrated impact in reducing unit expenses, coupled with a focus on building strong relationships with 
our producing partners, should continue to enhance our strong presence in the small group marketplace 
while simultaneously achieving acceptable returns. However, much will depend on the severity and duration 
of the economic downturn we are currently experiencing as Empire Life’s target market is primarily small 
businesses, and these businesses are being hit hard by the current economic conditions.
The individual life insurance marketplace in Canada continues to be competitively priced. This is partly due 
to the ongoing improvements in mortality and in operating effi ciencies, most of which have been passed 
on to the consumer. It is also partly due to the availability of competitive reinsurance rates that enable 
companies that use higher levels of reinsurance to reduce new business strain and thus avoid having sales 
growth suppress short-term earnings. Industry consolidation has offered opportunities for companies such 
as Empire Life to grow by fi lling the void left in independent advisors’ product portfolios when the products of 
acquired companies are no longer offered. We will continue to take advantage of the growth resulting from 
the strong relationships that have been built with members of both the IFA and MGA distribution networks, 
and will continue to broaden our distribution reach into the National Account network. Despite modest 
overall industry growth in this product line over the last fi ve years, Empire Life has experienced signifi cant 
sales growth over the same period despite the decline during 2008. This, in turn, has resulted in signifi cant 
improvements in cost ratios.  While expecting to continue to grow this line of business at above the forecast
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modest industry average rates, this past improvement in unit expenses means that we can continue to 
take a more balanced approach to growth and profi t and focus on those market segments where our core 
products are both competitive and provide an acceptable rate of return. Aside from the impact of poor stock 
market conditions on the outlook for management fee spreads on universal life equity index products, the 
life insurance business is less sensitive to stock market and employment conditions than Empire Life’s 
other product lines.
On the wealth management side of the business, fi ve straight years of positive returns from Canadian stock 
markets came to an end in 2008 as markets dropped 35%. This has hurt sales, lowered the market value 
of assets under management and lowered management fee revenue for all players in the Canadian pooled 
fund marketplace and led to weaker, but still positive net sales for Empire Life in 2008. Our focus continues 
to be growing our market share in the segregated fund business. During the fourth quarter of 2008, Empire 
Life introduced a new Guaranteed Minimum Withdrawal Benefi t segregated fund product, invested in risk 
management capabilities by developing a stochastic model approach and obtained OSFI approval for use of 
this model in support of this business line.  Empire Life also developed a Tax Free Savings Account product 
for launch in early 2009. Looking forward, it is expected that the continued development of new product 
offerings and features coupled with a strong sales account management team will enable a continuation of 
the market share growth we have experienced in the last several years.  Empire Life believes that segregated 
fund products will be even more appealing to customers after their personal experiences with market turmoil, 
and that Empire Life is well positioned to benefi t from this. An eventual stock market recovery will reward 
customers and lead to a recovery of fee revenues for Empire Life.
Empire Life remains committed to the distribution of its products through qualifi ed intermediaries who 
can provide the counsel consumers need to fulfi l their fi nancial security and wealth management goals.  
It is our intention to continually enhance the product, technology and service support that these advisors 
need to satisfy their clients. We believe that the strengthening of our relationships with our distribution 
partners and a focus on developing new relationships with quality advisors are the key elements in 
achieving our growth goals.

March 9, 2009
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The accompanying consolidated fi nancial statements of E-L Financial Corporation Limited and its 
subsidiaries and all information in the Annual Report are the responsibility of management and have 
been approved by the Board of Directors. The consolidated fi nancial statements necessarily include 
amounts that are based on judgments, which are applied consistently and are considered appropriate 
in the circumstances.

The consolidated fi nancial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian 
generally accepted accounting principles. Financial and operating data elsewhere in the Annual Report 
are consistent with the information contained in the consolidated fi nancial statements.

The Company and its subsidiaries maintain systems of internal control over fi nancial reporting which 
are designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, expenditures are made 
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors, transactions are properly recorded 
and that fi nancial records are reliable for preparing the consolidated fi nancial statements in accordance 
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. Under the supervision of management, an 
evaluation of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over fi nancial reporting was carried 
out as at December 31, 2008. Based on that evaluation, management concluded that the Company’s 
internal control over fi nancial reporting was effective as at December 31, 2008.

The Board of Directors carries out its responsibility for the consolidated fi nancial statements in this Annual 
Report principally through its Audit Committee and the Audit Committees of its subsidiaries. These Audit 
Committees meet periodically with management and with the internal and external auditors to discuss 
the scope and results of audit examinations with respect to internal controls and fi nancial reporting of 
the Company and its subsidiaries. The Audit Committees of the subsidiaries also meet periodically with 
the Appointed Actuaries.

The Appointed Actuaries are appointed by the Boards of Directors of the insurance subsidiaries to 
conduct an annual valuation of policy liabilities, in accordance with accepted actuarial practices, and 
to report on whether the valuations are appropriate and whether their results are fairly presented in 
the subsidiaries’ fi nancial statements. The Appointed Actuaries use the work of the external auditors in 
verifying data used for valuation purposes.

Deloitte & Touche LLP has been appointed external auditors. It is their responsibility to report to the 
shareholders regarding the fairness of presentation of the Company’s consolidated fi nancial position 
and results of operations as shown in the annual consolidated fi nancial statements. In carrying out their 
audit, the external auditors also consider the work of the actuaries and their reports on policy liabilities. 
The external auditors have full and free access to, and meet periodically with, the Audit Committees to 
discuss their audits. The Auditors’ Report outlines the scope of their examination and their opinion.

Duncan N.R. Jackman     Mark M. Taylor
Chairman, President and     Executive Vice-President
    Chief Executive Offi cer        and Chief Financial Offi cer
March 9, 2009

Management Report
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To the Shareholders of

E-L Financial Corporation Limited

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of E-L Financial Corporation Limited as at December 
31, 2008 and 2007 and the consolidated statements of (loss) income, comprehensive (loss) income, 
changes in shareholders’ equity and cash fl ows for the years then ended. These consolidated fi nancial 
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these consolidated fi nancial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the 
consolidated fi nancial statements are free of material mis statement. An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated fi nancial state ments. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and signifi cant estimates made by 
manage ment, as well as evaluating the overall fi nancial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated fi nancial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
fi nancial position of the Company as at December 31, 2008 and 2007 and the results of its operations 
and its cash fl ows for the years then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting 
principles.

Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants
Toronto, Canada
March 3, 2009, except as to Note 29 which is as of March 9, 2009

Auditors’ Report



Consolidated Balance Sheets
(thousands of dollars)

As at December 31,

Assets 2008 2007

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21)  $     357,294 $     364,785
Portfolio investments (Note 4)  878,947 1,097,886
Equity method investment (Note 5)  221,205 309,861
Investments - insurance operations (Note 6)  5,398,721 5,687,639
Premiums receivable  276,911 259,894
Accrued investment income  26,140 27,612
Deferred acquisition expenses  101,320 95,838
Reinsurance recoverable (Note 8)  104,867 199,957
Income taxes receivable  97,306 81,697
Future income taxes (Note 13)  19,489 20,180
Other assets (Note 9)  83,967 95,639

  $  7,566,167 $  8,240,988

Segregated funds assets  $  3,348,827 $  4,594,300

Financial Corporation Limited and subsidiary companies
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Liabilities 2008 2007

Policy liabilities (Note 8) $  4,885,506 $  5,050,514
Policyholders’ funds on deposit 30,982 30,620
Income and other taxes payable 10,436 6,366
Provision for profi ts to policyholders 17,186 15,888
Deferred realized net gains on investments — 24
Other liabilities (Note 10) 200,156 177,345
Future income taxes (Note 13) 39,842 73,346
 5,184,108 5,354,103

Non-controlling interest in subsidiaries 122,738 133,095
Participating policyholders’ interest  42,122 53,344

 164,860 186,439

Shareholders’ equity 
Capital stock (Note 12) 272,388 272,388
Retained earnings 2,259,739 2,399,714
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income (314,928) 28,344
 2,217,199 2,700,446
 $  7,566,167 $  8,240,988

Segregated funds liabilities $  3,348,827 $  4,594,300

Approved by the Board
 Duncan N.R. Jackman, Director
 Douglas C. Townsend, Director

Consolidated Balance Sheets (continued)  
(thousands of dollars) As at December 31,
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Consolidated Statements of (Loss) Income
(thousands of dollars except per share amounts)

 2008 2007
Revenue
 Insurance premiums (Note 11) $  1,591,730 $  1,539,125
 Annuity premiums 117,705 91,083
 Investment and other income (Note 7) 403,755 394,861
 Loss from equity method investment (Note 5) (117,313) (20,119)
 Change in fair value of held for trading investments (Note 7) (245,544) (83,317)
 Realized gain on held for trading investments 16,986 65,916
 Realized (loss) gain on available for sale investments (167,171) 175,397
  1,600,148 2,162,946
Expenses
 Claims and policy benefi ts 1,106,568 1,273,824
 Commissions 324,060 344,536
 Operating 227,331 217,378
  1,657,959 1,835,738
(Loss) income before the undernoted items (57,811) 327,208

Taxes
 Income (Note 13) 12,651 59,805
 Premium 46,400 45,322
 Investment and capital 3,536 4,283
  62,587 109,410

(Loss) income before policyholders’ and 
 non-controlling interest  (120,398) 217,798

Policyholders’ and non-controlling interest’s
 portion of income 6,565 7,110

Net (loss) income (Note 15) $    (126,963) $     210,688

Net (loss) income per share (Note 12)
 - basic $        (41.20) $         60.29
 - diluted $        (41.20) $         57.37

Years ended December 31, 
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 2008 2007
Net (loss) income $   (126,963) $    210,688
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax
 Unrealized fair value change on available for
    sale investments (Note 14) (427,553) 7,939
 Less: Realized (loss) gain on available for sale
    investments (Note 14) (87,051) 136,767

 Net unrealized fair value decrease (340,502) (128,828)

 Change in unrealized gain/loss on derivative investments
    designated as cash fl ow hedges (Note 14) (2,885) —
 Less: Change in unrealized gain/loss on derivative
    investments designated as cash fl ow hedges
    reclassifi ed to net income (Note 14) (115) —

 Net unrealized fair value decrease (2,770) —

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax (343,272) (128,828)

Comprehensive (loss) income $   (470,235) $      81,860

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive (Loss) Income
(thousands of dollars)

Years ended December 31, 

 2008 2007

Capital stock $    272,388 $    272,388

Retained earnings
 Balance at beginning of year 2,399,714 2,125,333
 Impact of change in accounting standards — 76,394
 Net income (loss) (126,963) 210,688
 Recovery of refundable dividend taxes 4,020 4,020
 Dividends (Note 12) (12,060) (12,060)
 Provision for refundable dividend taxes (4,972) (4,661)

 Balance at end of year 2,259,739 2,399,714

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income
 Balance at beginning of year 28,344 —
 Impact of change in accounting standards — 157,172
 Other comprehensive loss (343,272) (128,828)

 Balance at end of year (Note 26) (314,928) 28,344

Shareholders’ equity $ 2,217,199 $ 2,700,446

Years ended December 31, 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
(thousands of dollars)



Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows    
(thousands of dollars)

 2008 2007
Net infl ow of cash related to the following activities:

Operating
 Net (loss) income $    (126,963) $     210,688
 Items not affecting cash resources:
  (Decrease) increase in net policy liabilities (69,918) 214,707
  Realized loss (gain) on sale of investments 150,185 (241,313)
  Change in fair value of held for trading investments 245,544 83,317
  Future income taxes, excluding items charged to retained earnings (18,946) (26,972)
  Loss from equity method investment 121,606 24,137
  Other items (29,587) (46,474)
  271,921 218,090
 Net change in other assets and liabilities (7,985) (28,641)
  263,936 189,449

Financing
 Cash dividends to shareholders (Note 12) (12,060) (12,060)
 Banker’s acceptance 24,838 —

  12,778 (12,060)

Investing
 Purchases of investments (1,631,856) (2,494,190)
 Proceeds from sale or maturity of investments 1,450,213 2,460,842
 Net purchases of short-term investments (80,562) (19,779)
 Net sales (purchases) of other assets (10,312) 420
  (272,517) (52,707)

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,197 124,682
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 321,270 196,588
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year (Note 21) $     325,467 $     321,270

Years ended December 31, 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(all dollar fi gures expressed in thousands, except per share amounts)

1. Nature of the business
E-L Financial Corporation Limited (the “Company”) is an investment and insurance holding company, 
publicly traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange and incorporated under the laws of Ontario.
The Company has two operating insurance subsidiaries, The Dominion of Canada General Insurance 
Company (“The Dominion”) and The Empire Life Insurance Company (“Empire”). The Dominion 
underwrites property and casualty insurance (“General Insurance”) while Empire underwrites life 
and health insurance policies and annuity contracts (“Life Insurance”) for individuals and groups. 
Both subsidiaries are registered under the Insurance Companies Act, Canada and operate in most 
provinces and territories across Canada.
In addition, the Company owns investments in stocks and fi xed income securities directly, and 
indirectly, through pooled funds, closed-end investment companies and other investment companies 
(“Corporate Investments”).

2. Changes in accounting policies
 a) Capital Disclosures

On January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the provisions of CICA Handbook Sections 1535, Capital 
Disclosures. This section requires the disclosure of both qualitative and quantitative information that 
enables users of fi nancial statements to evaluate the entity’s objectives, policies and processes 
for managing capital. This section also requires entities to disclose any externally imposed capital 
requirements, and the consequences of not complying with those requirements. This disclosure is 
provided in Note 25 to these consolidated fi nancial statements.

 b) Future Accounting Changes
Goodwill and intangible assets
The CICA issued a new accounting standard, Section 3064, Goodwill and Intangible Assets, which 
establishes standards for the recognition, measurement and disclosure of goodwill and intangible 
assets.  This new standard is effective for the Company beginning January 1, 2009. The change in 
accounting policy will be applied retroactively with restatement of the 2008 comparative fi gures.
The Company has determined that capitalized software development costs in the amount of $2,786, 
net of amortization, will not meet the recognition criteria of Section 3064. The retroactive impact on 
the fi nancial statements, as at January 1, 2009 will be a $2,786 decrease in capital assets, a $789 
increase in future tax asset and a $1,997 decrease in retained earnings.

International fi nancial reporting standards
In 2005, the Accounting Standards Board of Canada announced that accounting standards in 
Canada are to converge with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). In February 2008, 
the CICA confi rmed the change over date from current Canadian generally accepted accounting 
principles (“GAAP”) to IFRS to be January 1, 2011. While IFRS uses a conceptual framework similar 
to Canadian GAAP, there are signifi cant differences in accounting policies and fi nancial statement 
disclosures which must be addressed. The Company has not yet determined the future impact of 
these new standards on its fi nancial statements.

3. Summary of signifi cant accounting policies
These consolidated fi nancial statements include the accounts of The Dominion (wholly-owned), 
E-L Financial Services Limited (81.0% owned) and its 98.3% owned subsidiary company, Empire.

Financial Corporation Limited and subsidiary companies
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 Use of estimates
 The preparation of fi nancial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 

affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities 
as at the date of the fi nancial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during 
the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates and changes in estimates are recorded in 
the accounting period in which they are determined. 

 Financial instruments
The Company’s fi nancial assets are classifi ed as held for trading (“HFT”), available for sale (“AFS”), 
held to maturity (“HTM”) or loans and receivables based on management’s intentions or characteristics 
of the instrument. HFT instruments are carried at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets with 
changes in the fair value recorded in the consolidated statements of income in the period in which 
they occur. AFS instruments with a quoted price in an active market are carried at fair value in the 
consolidated balance sheets. Changes in the fair value of AFS instruments are recorded as other 
comprehensive income in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income until realized, or 
deemed to be other than temporarily impaired (“OTTI”), at which time, these gains and losses will be 
reclassifi ed to the consolidated statements of income. AFS assets which do not have a quoted price 
in an active market are carried at cost less any OTTI losses. When an OTTI of AFS at cost assets 
occurs, it is recognized in net income. All transactions are recorded on the trade date. Transaction 
costs are expensed for HFT instruments and capitalized for all others. Loans and receivables may 
include mortgage loans, loans on policies, policy contract loans, and premiums receivable. Loans 
and receivables and HTM assets are recorded at amortized cost, using the effective interest method, 
net of provisions for impairment losses, if any.
Investments in securities for which the Company has the ability to exert signifi cant infl uence over 
but does not control are accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
The Company classifi es the majority of its Corporate Investments as AFS. Certain securities which 
form part of a portfolio with a recent actual pattern of profi t-taking, and non-hedging derivatives have 
been designated as HFT.
The General Insurance operation has designated its investments in bonds and debentures, preferred 
shares and common shares, short-term investments and cash equivalents as AFS. Cash is classifi ed 
as HFT. Commercial loans are classifi ed as loans and receivables.
The Life Insurance operation classifi es most fi nancial assets supporting policy liabilities as HFT.  
These assets may be comprised of cash, short-term investments, bonds and debentures, common 
and preferred shares, futures, forwards and options. Most fi nancial assets supporting capital and 
surplus and certain common share assets supporting policy liabilities that do not meet the OSFI criteria 
for HFT are classifi ed as AFS. These assets may be comprised of cash, short-term investments, 
bonds and debentures or common and preferred shares. 
Fair value of fi nancial instruments
Fair value is the amount of consideration that would be agreed upon in an arm’s length transaction 
between knowledgeable, willing parties who are under no compulsion to act. When a fi nancial 
instrument is initially recognized, its fair value is generally the value of the consideration paid or 
received. Subsequent to initial recognition, the fair value of a fi nancial asset quoted in an active 
market is generally the bid price and, for a fi nancial liability quoted in an active market, the fair
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value is generally the ask price. For securities designated as HFT, in the absence of an active 
market, fair values may be determined based on prevailing market rates for instruments with similar 
characteristics and risk profi les or internal or external valuation models. All derivatives, including 
embedded derivatives that must be separately accounted for, are recorded at fair value. Due to the 
short-term nature of accrued investment income and premiums receivable, the fair value of these 
instruments is deemed to equal the carrying value.
Impairment
Management regularly reviews securities classifi ed as AFS and loans and receivables, for evidence 
of impairment. Factors considered in determining whether a loss is temporary include the length 
of time and extent to which fair value has been below cost, the fi nancial conditions and near-term 
prospects of the issuer, and the ability and intent to hold the investment for a period of time suffi cient 
to allow for recovery.
Comprehensive income
Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income (“OCI”). OCI 
includes unrealized gains or losses on AFS fi nancial assets, net of amounts reclassifi ed to the 
consolidated statements of income, and the effective portion of the change in the fair value of cash 
fl ow hedging instruments, net of amounts reclassifi ed to the consolidated statements of income, 
all net of taxes. The balance of accumulated other comprehensive income (“AOCI”) is shown as a 
separate component of shareholders’ equity.
Revenue recognition
In the General Insurance operation, premiums are earned on a straight-line basis over the term 
of the related policies. Premium fi nance fee income, included in investment and other income, is 
earned using the effective interest method over the term of the related policies. 
In the Life Insurance operation, insurance premiums net of reinsurance and annuity premiums, as 
well as reinsurance assumed premiums, are generally recorded as revenue when due. Annuity 
premiums are comprised solely of new deposits on general fund products with a guaranteed rate 
of return and exclude deposits on segregated fund products. Fee income earned for investment 
management and administration of the segregated funds, included in investment and other income, 
is generally calculated and recorded as revenue daily based on closing segregated funds asset 
market values.
Interest income, recognized using the effective interest method, and dividend income, recognized 
on the ex-dividend date, is included in investment income in the consolidated statements of income 
for all fi nancial assets, regardless of classifi cation.
Employee future defi ned benefi t plans 
The Company accrues its obligations for its employee defi ned benefi t plans, net of plan assets. The 
cost of defi ned benefi t pensions and other retirement benefi ts earned by employees is actuarially 
determined using the projected benefi t method pro-rated on services and using management’s 
best estimate of expected plan investment performance, salary escalation, retirement ages of 
employees and expected health care costs. For the purpose of calculating the expected return on 
plan assets, those assets are valued at fair value. Actuarial gains (losses) arise from the difference 
between actual long-term rate of return on plan assets for a period and the expected long-term rate 
of return on plan assets for that period or from changes in actuarial assumptions used to determine 
the accrued benefi t obligation. The excess of the net accumulated actuarial gain (loss) over 10% of 
the greater of the accrued benefi t obligation and the fair value of plan assets is amortized over the 
average remaining service period of active employees.

Financial Corporation Limited and subsidiary companies
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Income taxes
Future income tax assets and liabilities are recorded for the expected future income tax consequences 
of events that have been included in the fi nancial statements or income tax returns. Future income 
taxes are provided for using the asset and liability method. Under the asset and liability method, 
future income taxes are recognized for all signifi cant temporary differences between the tax and 
fi nancial statement bases for assets and liabilities and for certain carry-forward items. 
Future income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that, in the opinion of management, it is 
more likely than not that the future income tax assets will be realized. Future income tax assets and 
liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates, on the date of the enactment 
or substantive enactment.
Deferred acquisition expenses
In the Life Insurance operation, distribution costs of segregated funds having a deferred sales 
charge, are deferred and amortized over the term of the related deposits or the applicable period 
of such sales charges, as appropriate. These deferred costs form part of policy liabilities on the 
consolidated balance sheets and the related amortization forms part of claims and policy benefi ts 
on the consolidated statements of income.
Deferred acquisition expenses for the General Insurance operation, comprised primarily of commissions 
and premium taxes, are amortized on the same basis as the related premiums are earned. The 
amount deferred is limited to the amount recoverable.
Policy liabilities
Policy liabilities are determined using accepted actuarial practices in accordance with the standards of 
the Canadian Institute of Actuaries. Annually, each insurance subsidiary obtains an actuarial opinion 
on the appropriateness of the policy liability amounts recorded in its fi nancial statements. These 
opinions also incorporate related amounts for reinsurance recoverable and deferred acquisition 
expenses. The bases used for estimating each of General and Life Insurance policy liabilities are 
described below.
General Insurance policy liabilities include provisions for unearned premiums and unpaid and 
unreported claims. The provision for unpaid and unreported claims provides for all costs of investigation 
and settlement of insurance losses that have occurred prior to the year end, net of anticipated 
salvage and subrogation. Estimates must be made of the ultimate costs for known or reported 
claims as well as an estimate for those claims incurred but not yet reported. Many assumptions 
underlie these estimates, such as claims frequency and severity, claims payment trends, infl ation 
and interest rates, as well as potential changes in legislation and in the interpretation of liability by 
the courts. Unpaid and unreported claims are valued on a discounted basis, in accordance with 
accepted actuarial practice.
Life Insurance policy liabilities represent the estimated amount which, together with estimated future 
premiums and investment income, will be suffi cient to fund future benefi ts, dividends, expenses 
and taxes on policies in force. The liabilities incorporate management’s best estimate assumptions 
regarding such factors as mortality and morbidity, investment returns, rates of policy terminations, 
level of operating expenses, infl ation, policyholder dividends and taxes. Due to the long-term risks 
and uncertainties inherent in the Life Insurance business, a margin for adverse deviations from best 
estimates is calculated separately for each variable and included in policy liabilities.
All changes in policy liability estimates are recorded in claims and policy benefi ts in the consolidated 
statements of income in the period in which they occur. 

Financial Corporation Limited and subsidiary companies

43



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(all dollar fi gures expressed in thousands, except per share amounts)

Reinsurance ceded
Reinsurance is ceded to other insurers in order to limit exposure to signifi cant losses. Reinsurance 
ceded does not relieve the insurance operation of its primary liability. Ceded reinsurance premiums 
and reinsurance recoveries on claims and policy benefi ts incurred are recorded as a reduction of 
the respective income and expense amounts. Estimates of amounts recoverable from reinsurers 
in respect of insurance policy liabilities and their share of unearned premiums are recorded as 
reinsurance recoverable on the consolidated balance sheets. Reinsurance recoverable is valued 
on a discounted basis, in accordance with accepted actuarial practice.

 Participating policyholders’ interest
Certain life, disability and annuity policies are defi ned as participating policies by contractual 
provisions, and are eligible for periodic dividends. The distribution of dividends is made from the 
earnings attributed to the performance of the participating business.
Segregated funds
The segregated fund asset and liability amounts on the consolidated balance sheets are in respect 
of investment funds held on behalf of Life Insurance policyholders.
Investments held in the segregated funds are carried at their period end fair values.
Capital assets
Capital assets (furniture, equipment and computer software) are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortization. Amortization is provided on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the capital 
assets, which varies from two to seven years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the 
related remaining lease term. The General Insurance operation amortizes its building on a fi ve per 
cent declining balance basis.
Foreign currency translation
Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at period-end exchange rates, and non-monetary 
assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the transaction dates. Revenue 
and expense items are translated at actual rates prevailing during the period. 
Hedge accounting
From time to time, the Life Insurance operations enters into hedging arrangements. Where the Life 
Insurance operations has elected to use hedge accounting, a hedging relationship is designated 
and documented at inception. The Life Insurance operations evaluates hedge effectiveness at the 
inception of the relationship and at least on a quarterly basis using a variety of techniques including 
the cumulative dollar offset method. Both at inception and throughout the term of the hedge, the 
Life Insurance operations expects that each hedging instrument will be highly effective in achieving 
offsetting changes in cash fl ows attributable to the risk being hedged. When it is determined that the 
hedging relationship is no longer effective, or the hedged item has been sold or terminated, the Life 
Insurance operations discontinues hedge accounting prospectively. In such cases, if the derivative 
hedging instrument is not sold or terminated, any subsequent changes in fair value of the derivative 
is recognized in investment income.
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In a cash fl ow hedging relationship, the effective portion of the change in the fair value of the hedging 
instrument is recorded in OCI while the ineffective portion is recognized in investment income. Gains 
and losses accumulated in AOCI are reclassifi ed and recognized in investment income during the 
periods when the variability in the cash fl ows hedged or the hedged forecasted transactions are 
recognized in income. Gains and losses on cash fl ow hedges accumulated in AOCI are reclassifi ed 
immediately to investment income when either the hedged item is sold or the forecasted transaction 
is no longer expected to occur. When hedge accounting is discontinued, and the hedged forecasted 
transaction remains probable of occurring, then the amounts previously recognized in AOCI are 
reclassifi ed and recognized in investment income in the periods during which variability in the cash 
fl ows hedged or the hedged forecasted transaction is recognized in income.
The Life Insurance operations enters into fair value hedging relationships associated with currency 
risk in available for sale assets. Changes in the fair value of the derivatives used for fair value hedges 
are recorded in investment income. The change in fair value of these available for sale investments 
related to the hedged risk is recorded in investment income. As a result, ineffectiveness, if any, is 
recognized in investment income.
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4.  Portfolio investments
The following table provides a comparison of carrying values and fair values for the Company’s 
Corporate Investments segment as at December 31:
 2008
  Required to Designated Total Total Total
  be held for as held for Available carrying fair
  trading trading for sale value value

Short-term investments  $               — $                 — $         10,687 $       10,687 $       10,687

Bonds and debentures  — — 36,826 36,826 36,826

Common and
 preferred shares  56 — 831,661 831,717 587,301

Derivatives (Note 20)  (283) — — (283) (283)

Total  $           (227) $                 — $       879,174 $     878,947 $     634,531

 2007
  Required to Designated  Total Total
  be held for as held for Available carrying fair
  trading trading for sale value value

Short-term investments  $               — $                 — $         28,858 $       28,858 $       28,858

Bonds and debentures  — — 35,425 35,425 35,425

Common and
 preferred shares  2,794 10,899 1,020,003 1,033,696 994,533

Derivatives (Note 20)  (93) — — (93) (93)

Total  $          2,701 $          10,899      $    1,084,286 $  1,097,886 $  1,058,723

Included in the common and preferred shares classifi ed as AFS are $714,436 (2007 - $717,184) of 
securities which do not have a quoted price in an active market and are therefore carried at cost for 
fi nancial reporting purposes. These holdings are comprised of securities of investment companies 
and investment funds. The fair value for these entities, $470,020 (2007 - $678,021), refl ects the net 
asset value per share multiplied by the number of shares held. The net asset values are determined 
based on the underlying fair values of the net assets within these entities. Realization of the fair 
value of these securities held is dependent in part on the timing of distribution of cash dividends by 
these entities or the ultimate disposition of the Company’s interest in these entities. Management 
has conducted an evaluation of these investments and concluded that the unrealized losses on 
these securities are consistent with the decline in global markets. Accordingly, management does 
not consider these to be other than temporarily impaired.
The Corporate Investments segment includes investments in several widely held investment 
funds that are managed by independent third parties. These investments have a carrying value of 
$313,906 (2007 - $316,654) and represent signifi cant variable interests in variable interest entities 
that the Company has not consolidated because it is not the primary benefi ciary. In the ordinary 
course of its business, the Company has made these investments with the primary objective of 
accumulating shareholder value through the long-term appreciation in the equity holdings of their 
investment funds.
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Management regularly reviews securities classifi ed as AFS for evidence of impairment. In 2008, 
management recognized other than temporary impairment of $34,394 (2007 - $1,033) on securities 
with a carrying value of $79,668 (2007 - $1,879). These assets were written down since the fair value 
was less than cost and management intended to sell during the fi rst quarter 2009. 

The following table summarizes the fair value and unrealized losses recognized in AOCI for investments 
held at December 31, 2008. Management has conducted an evaluation of the portfolio and concluded 
that the unrealized losses on these securities are consistent with the decline in global markets. 
Accordingly, management does not consider these to be other than temporarily impaired.

 2008 2007
 Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
 value losses value losses

Bonds  $              19,847 $                1,910 $              23,894 $                   451
Preferred shares — — 352 91
Common shares 53,292 66,200 84,693 20,715
Total $              73,139 $              68,110 $            108,939 $              21,257

The concentration of the Corporate Investments segment’s bond portfolio by investment grade is 
as follows:

 2008 2007
 Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
 value value value value

AAA  $                4,718 $                4,718 $                9,587 $                9,587
AA 7,161 7,161 4,748 4,748
A  20,706 20,706 18,139 18,139
BBB 4,241 4,241 2,951 2,951
  $              36,826 $              36,826 $              35,425 $              35,425

Bonds and debentures by contractual maturity are as follows:
 2008 2007
 Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
 value value value value

1 year or less $                2,020 $                2,020 $                   751 $                   751
1-5 years 20,238 20,238 16,927 16,927
5-10 years 6,545 6,545 10,289 10,289
Over 10 years 8,023 8,023 7,458 7,458

 $              36,826 $              36,826 $              35,425 $              35,425
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The fi nancial assets of the Corporate Investments segment are exposed to a variety of market risks 
including interest rate, foreign currency and other price risk. The impact on net income and other 
comprehensive income of a reasonably possible change in each of these variables is described 
below:

• Interest rate – A 1% fl uctuation in market interest rates would have an impact of approximately 
$ nil on net income and $1,196 on other comprehensive income.

• Foreign currency – The Corporate Investments segment’s primary foreign currency exposure 
is the US dollar.  A 10% fl uctuation in the USD would have an impact of approximately $5 on 
net income and $476 on other comprehensive income.

• Other price risk - A 10% fl uctuation in market prices would have an impact of approximately 
$19 on net income and $9,798 on other comprehensive income.

5.  Equity method investment
 The Company holds an investment in United Corporations Limited (“United”), a closed-end investment 

corporation that trades on the Toronto Stock Exchange. As at December 31, 2008, the Company 
holds 46.16% (2007 - 41.49%) of the outstanding common shares of United. Details of the investment 
are as follows:
 2008 2007

Balance, beginning of year $     309,861 $     331,698
Purchase of additional shares during the year 32,949 2,300
Loss recognized for the year, using the
     equity method (117,313) (20,119)
Dividends received during the year (4,292) (4,018)
Balance, end of year $     221,205 $     309,861

6.  Investments - insurance operations
 The carrying values of the investments held by the insurance operations are provided below:

 2008 2007

General Insurance $  1,943,279 $  2,143,828
Life Insurance 3,455,442 3,543,811
 $  5,398,721 $  5,687,639

 A detailed analysis of the investments of the insurance operations is provided in notes 6(a) and (b).
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(a) General Insurance
The following table provides a comparison of carrying values and fair values for the Company’s 
General Insurance operation:
 2008

 Required to Designated  Loans, Total Total
 be held for as held for Available receivables carrying fair
 trading trading for sale and real estate value value

Short-term investments $            — $           — $     98,886 $             — $      98,886 $      98,886
Bonds and debentures — — 1,194,336 — 1,194,336 1,194,336
Preferred shares — — 123,961 — 123,961 123,961
Common shares — — 476,082 — 476,082 476,082
Commercial loans — — — 48,737 48,737 48,737
Real estate — — — 1,277 1,277 4,838

Total $            — $           — $1,893,265 $      50,014 $ 1,943,279 $ 1,946,840

 2007

 Required to Designated  Loans, Total Total
 be held for as held for Available receivables carrying fair
 trading trading for sale and real estate value value

Short-term investments $            — $           — $      40,747 $              — $      40,747 $      40,747
Bonds and debentures — — 1,258,378 — 1,258,378 1,258,378
Preferred shares — — 93,057 — 93,057 93,057
Common shares — — 705,548 — 705,548 701,463
Commercial loans — — — 44,760 44,760 44,760
Real estate — — — 1,338 1,338 4,838

Total $            — $           — $ 2,097,730 $       46,098 $ 2,143,828 $ 2,143,243

The Dominion’s investment in common shares consists of units in pooled funds which are managed by 
independent investment managers. These pooled funds contain a minor cash component in addition 
to the common share holdings. Pooled fund units are valued using Canadian dollar denominated 
net asset values provided by the custodians of the pooled fund units.
Commercial loans are made to certain independent insurance brokers with whom The Dominion 
conducts business.  Substantially all of these loans are secured by the borrowers’ assets, the primary 
asset being the borrowers’ book of business. In some instances, guarantees may be provided by 
parties related to the borrower in order to enhance the credit quality of the loan. The loan portfolio is 
monitored throughout the year and an annual review of each borrower’s credit worthiness is performed 
using analytical and other techniques as considered necessary. At the end of the year all commercial 
loans were in good standing. The maximum exposure to credit risk without any consideration of 
collateral is the carrying value of the commercial loans of $48,737 (2007 - $44,760).
Real estate is carried at amortized cost and the carrying value is net of accumulated amortization 
of $1,897 (2007 - $1,837).

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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The following table summarizes the fair value and unrealized losses recognized in AOCI for 
investments held at December 31, 2008. Management has conducted an evaluation of the portfolio 
and concluded that the unrealized losses on these securities are consistent with the decline in global 
markets. Accordingly, management does not consider these to be other than temporarily impaired 
and no impairment loss has been recorded.
 2008 2007
 Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
 value losses value losses

Bonds  $            509,835 $              33,225 $            595,439 $                9,556
Preferred shares 72,616 17,430 35,125 1,841
Common shares 476,082 200,025 472,902 8,158
Total $         1,058,533 $            250,680 $         1,103,466 $              19,555

The concentration of the General Insurance operation’s bond and debenture portfolio by investment 
grade is as follows:
 2008 2007
 Carrying Fair  Carrying Fair
 value value  value value

AAA $            158,307 $            158,307 $            325,779 $            325,779 
AA 369,734 369,734 377,262  377,262
A 576,413 576,413 473,678 473,678
BBB 85,155 85,155 76,715 76,715
BB 4,727 4,727 4,944 4,944

Total $         1,194,336 $         1,194,336 $         1,258,378 $         1,258,378

Bonds and debentures by contractual maturity are as follows:
 2008 2007
  Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
  value value value value
1 year or less $            165,294 $            165,294 $            192,624 $            192,624
1-5 years 738,639 738,639 707,986  707,986
5-10 years 208,277 208,277 219,461 219,461
Over 10 years 82,126 82,126 138,307 138,307

Total $         1,194,336 $         1,194,336 $         1,258,378 $         1,258,378

The fi nancial assets of the General Insurance operation are exposed to a variety of market risks 
including interest rate, foreign currency and other price risk. The impact on net income and other 
comprehensive income of a reasonably possible change in each of these variables is described 
below:

• Interest rate – A 1% fl uctuation in market interest rates would have an impact of approximately 
$ nil on net income and $29,633 on other comprehensive income.

• Foreign currency – The General Insurance operation’s primary foreign currency exposure 
is the US dollar. A 10% fl uctuation in the USD would have an impact of approximately $ nil 
on net income and $19,961 on other comprehensive income.

• Other price risk - A 10% fl uctuation in market prices would have an impact of approximately 
$ nil on net income and $40,865 on other comprehensive income.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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(b) Life Insurance

The following table provides a comparison of carrying values and fair values for the Company’s Life 
Insurance operation as at December 31:

 2008

 Required to Designated  Loans, Total Total
 be held for as held for Available receivables carrying fair
 trading trading for sale and real estate value value

Short-term investments $            — $             — $     75,895 $              — $      75,895 $      75,895
Bonds 18,198 1,991,179 298,564 — 2,307,941 2,307,941
Mortgages — — — 242,678 242,678 242,846
Preferred shares — 171,710 76,173 — 247,883 247,883
Common shares 95,149 — 290,517 — 385,666 385,222
Real estate — — — 15,355 15,355 14,090
Loans on policies — — — 37,161 37,161 37,161
Policy contract loans — — — 142,863 142,863 142,863

Total $   113,347 $ 2,162,889 $   741,149 $    438,057 $ 3,455,442  $ 3,453,901

 2007

 Required to Designated  Loans, Total Total
 be held for as held for Available receivables carrying fair
 trading trading for sale and real estate value value

Short-term investments $            — $        1,998 $     32,834 $              — $      34,832 $      34,832
Bonds 14,859 2,057,169 234,476 — 2,306,504 2,306,504
Mortgages — — — 248,041 248,041 253,697
Preferred shares — 122,888 23,580 — 146,468 146,468
Common shares 146,711 — 463,289 — 610,000 610,037
Real estate — — — 14,787 14,787 14,090
Loans on policies — — — 34,812 34,812 34,812
Policy contract loans — — — 148,367 148,367 148,367

Total $   161,570 $ 2,182,055 $   754,179 $    446,007 $ 3,543,811  $ 3,548,807

Real estate is carried at cost. Realized gains and losses on real estate are deferred, and amortized 
to income at 3% each quarter. The unamortized realized gains and losses are included in other 
liabilities in the balance sheet.
Due to the nature of loans on policies and policy contract loans, fair values are assumed to be equal 
to carrying value.
Assets classifi ed as loans and receivables have been reviewed for possible impairment. As a result 
of this review, mortgages with a recorded value of $9,301(2007 - $10,259), have been reduced by 
an allowance for impairment of $2,341 (2007 - $2,466) and policy contract loans with a recorded 
value of $813 (2007 - $813) have been reduced by an allowance for impairment of $599 (2007 
– $618). The Life Insurance operation holds collateral of $7,355 (2007 - $8,221) in respect of these 
mortgages and $214 (2007 - $195) in respect of these policy loans. Policy loans are secured by 
a Life Insurance policy. The Life Insurance operation has recorded interest income of $890 (2007 
- $983) on these assets.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Management regularly reviews securities classifi ed as AFS for evidence of impairment. In 2008, 
management recognized other than temporary impairment of $ nil (2007 - $4,381) on securities with 
a carrying value of $ nil (2007 - $15,734).
The following table summarizes the fair value and unrealized losses recognized in AOCI for 
investments held at December 31, 2008. Management has conducted an evaluation of the portfolio 
and concluded that the unrealized losses on these securities are consistent with the decline in global 
markets. Accordingly management does not consider these to be other than temporarily impaired.

 2008 2007
 Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
 value losses value losses
Bonds  $       62,988 $         6,452 $    133,973 $         1,466
Preferred shares 69,548 12,547 23,580 1,653
Common shares 198,391 87,152 134,596 7,025
Total $     330,927 $     106,151 $    292,149 $       10,144

The concentration of the Life Insurance operation’s bond portfolio by investment grade is as follows:

 2008 2007
  Carrying Fair  Carrying Fair
  value value  value value

 AAA $       90,759 $       90,759  $     112,290 $     112,290
 AA 935,933 935,933  1,025,060 1,025,060
 A 1,166,574 1,166,574  1,084,590 1,084,590
 BBB 109,939 109,939  79,614 79,614
 BB 4,736 4,736  4,950 4,950

 Total $  2,307,941 $  2,307,941  $  2,306,504 $  2,306,504

Bonds and debentures by contractual maturity are as follows:

 2008 2007
  Carrying Fair  Carrying Fair
  value value  value value
 1 year or less $       70,210 $       70,210  $       18,489 $       18,489
 1-5 years 248,115 248,115  245,257 245,257
 5-10 years 255,607 255,607  252,124 252,124
 Over 10 years 1,734,009 1,734,009  1,790,634 1,790,634

 Total $  2,307,941 $  2,307,941  $  2,306,504 $  2,306,504
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The fi nancial assets of the Life Insurance operation are exposed to a variety of market risks including 
interest rate, foreign currency and other price risk. For fi nancial assets matching policy liabilities, the 
exposure to these risks in its fi nancial assets is generally offset by a corresponding exposure to these 
risks in its policy obligations. As the policy liability for these policy obligations is calculated based 
on market value, increases and decreases in these risk variables affect both investment income 
and the change in policy liabilities. The impact on net income and other comprehensive income of 
a reasonably possible change in each of these variables is described below:
• Interest rate – A 1% fl uctuation in market interest rates would have an impact of approximately 

$ nil on net income and $4,337 on other comprehensive income.
• Foreign currency – The Life Insurance operation’s primary foreign currency exposure is the US 

dollar.  A 10% fl uctuation in the USD would have an impact of approximately $ nil on net income 
and $3,969 on other comprehensive income. The Life Insurance operation has no signifi cant 
foreign currency exposure in its fi nancial liabilities.

• Other price risk - A 10% fl uctuation in market prices would have an impact of approximately $4,924 
on net income and $15,695 on other comprehensive income. For segregated fund guarantee 
policy liabilities the direction of the price change impacts the amount, such that a 10% increase 
in market prices would have a positive impact of approximately $3,775 on shareholders’ net 
income, while a 10% decrease in market prices would have a negative impact of approximately 
$16,180 on shareholders’ net income. For segregated fund guarantee policy liabilities the level 
of sensitivity is highly dependent on the level of the stock market at the time of performing the 
estimate. At higher market starting points the sensitivity is reduced, while lower starting points 
have the opposite effect.

7. Composition of certain revenue items
 Investment and other income is comprised of the following:
  2008 2007
 Interest income $    219,219 $    214,135
 Fee income 103,171 105,047
 Dividend income 68,548 60,726
 Real estate income 982 1,215
 Other 11,835 13,738
  $    403,755 $    394,861

 Included in interest income is $49,915 (2007 - $116,165) relating to assets not classifi ed as HFT.

 Composition of change in fair value of held for trading investments:
  2008 2007
 Change in fair value of instruments required to be
   classifi ed as HFT $     (40,974) $    (34,531)
 Change in fair value of instruments designated as HFT (204,570) (48,786)
  $   (245,544) $     (83,317)
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8. Policy liabilities
Policy liabilities are comprised of:
 2008 2007
 Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
General Insurance
 unearned premiums
 provision $   530,018 $       8,609 $   521,409 $   504,860 $       7,951 $   496,909

General Insurance
 unpaid and unreported
 claims provision 1,467,985 52,456 1,415,529 1,412,584 71,481 1,341,103

Life Insurance 
 benefi ts and
 expense provision 2,887,503 43,802 2,843,701 3,133,070 120,525 3,012,545

 $4,885,506 $   104,867 $4,780,639 $5,050,514 $   199,957 $4,850,557

General Insurance unearned premiums provision represents the portion of premiums that relate to 
the unexpired term of underlying insurance policies. These amounts are determined to be suffi cient 
to fund anticipated claims and expenses.
The General Insurance unpaid and unreported claims provision does not include amounts for claims 
where obligations to claimants have been settled by the purchase of annuities from life insurance 
companies. The General Insurance operation guarantees the life insurers’ obligations under these 
annuities which are estimated to be $206,636 (2007 - $194,620) based on the net present value of 
the projected future cash fl ows of these guarantees in 2008. The Company considers the credit risk 
of such guarantees to be insignifi cant.
In the absence of an active market for the sale of claims liabilities, the actuarially discounted carrying 
values for the General Insurance unpaid and unreported claims and reinsurance recoverable provide 
a reasonable approximation of fair value.
The change in net policy liabilities, excluding the General Insurance unearned premium provision, 
related to General Insurance is outlined below:
 2008 2007
General Insurance 
 Balance, beginning of year $1,341,103 $1,228,415
 Impact of change in accounting standards — 3,360
 Change in prior years’ claims estimates (71,496) (54,445)
 Interest cost 51,255 45,086
 Impact of change in discount rate 2,512 (510)
 Current year claims incurred 786,308 724,524
 Claims payments (694,153) (605,327)
 Balance, end of year $1,415,529 $1,341,103

The 2008 reduction in prior year claims estimates of $71,496 consists of: $40,264 favourable in 
automobile lines, attributable to a changed view of uncertainty in the claims estimates primarily 
relating to accident benefi t claims and third-party bodily injury claims of recent accident years; $5,027 
favourable in personal property refl ecting better than expected experience from recent accident 
years; and $26,205 favourable in commercial property and casualty, arising mainly from better 
than expected experience and a changed view of uncertainty in the claims estimates on general
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liability claims occurring in various accident years. The reduction in claims estimates of $54,445 
recognized in 2007 consisted of: $32,080 favourable in automobile lines, attributable to better than 
expected experience primarily relating to accident benefi t claims and third-party bodily injury claims 
arising in accident years 2001 to 2006; $4,310 favourable in personal property refl ecting better than 
expected experience from various accident years; and $18,055 favourable in commercial property 
and casualty, arising partly from better than expected experience on property and general liability 
claims occurring in various recent years, and partly from further positive developments related to 
the claims that accounted for most of the favourable development recognized in 2006 relating to 
the abuse claims from residential schools from mainly 1959 to 1967.
Reinsurance agreements are negotiated with reinsurance companies that have an independent credit 
rating of “A” or better and that the Company considers credit-worthy. Based on ongoing monitoring 
of independent credit ratings, the Company assesses the credit risk associated with reinsurance 
recoverable to be insignifi cant.
Unpaid and unreported claims and reinsurance recoverable are discounted in accordance with 
accepted actuarial practice in Canada for the General Insurance operations. The weighted average 
discount rate used for 2008 was 4.6% (2007 – 4.6%). The average discount rate used by the Facility 
Association was 2.8% (2007 – 4.2%). The impact of a 1% decrease (increase) in the weighted 
average discount rate is an increase (decrease) in the 2008 net unpaid and unreported claims 
carrying value of $37,364 (2007– $34,079).
The change in net policy liabilities related to Life Insurance operations is outlined below:
 2008 2007
Life Insurance
 Balance, beginning of year $  3,012,545 $  2,360,032
 Impact of change in accounting standards — 544,736
 Changes in methods and assumptions (47,741) 2,131
 Normal changes  -  new business 120,834 145,073
    -  in-force business (241,937) (39,427)
 Balance, end of year $  2,843,701 $  3,012,545

The changes in actuarial methods and assumptions in 2008 include a net decrease of $22,712 (2007 
- $21,376) to refl ect improving mortality/morbidity experience, a net increase of $14,278 (2007 - 
$19,970) to refl ect decreases in the investment return assumptions, and a net decrease of $43,853  
(2007 - $ nil) to refl ect an updated approach for establishing the insurance mortality assumption. 
The net impact of other changes amounted to a net increase of $4,546 (2007 - $3,537).
The provisions described above are estimates and accordingly, the actual amounts that are ultimately 
incurred will differ. The likelihood of signifi cant differences from amounts currently provided increases 
with the length of the time until the settlement amounts of claims and the timing of other benefi ts are 
established. A signifi cant proportion of the Company’s policy liabilities are long-term. Management of 
the Company is satisfi ed that current estimates constitute a prudent assessment of these liabilities. 
Valuation assumptions are reviewed and updated at least annually and the impact of changes in 
those assumptions is refl ected in earnings in the year of the change.
Based on recent experience, the Company has estimated that a decrease (or increase) in the 
individual insurance mortality assumption equal to 3% of the base table would result in an increase 
(or decrease) of approximately $20,468 (2007 - $19,433) in net income and that the decrease in 
reinvestment rates caused by a decrease of 1% in current market interest rates would result in 
a decrease of approximately $23,654 (2007 - $29,707) in net income and that net income is not 
sensitive to likely short term swings in expenses.
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9.  Other assets
Other assets are comprised of the following:
 2008 2007
Due from Facility Association $      7,114 $      9,059
Capital assets, at cost (net of accumulated amortization
 of $68,909 (2007 - $61,518)) 44,949 43,119
Due from reinsurance companies 10,025 21,510
Pension asset (Note 16) 6,791 3,363
Other   15,088 18,588
    $    83,967 $    95,639

 The Facility Association is an automobile insurance market of last resort for higher risk drivers. 
Results are pooled and mandatorily shared among auto insurers. Due from Facility Association 
represents the General Insurance operation’s share of the assets of the Facility Association which 
are available to fund a portion of the General Insurance operation’s share of Facility Association 
policy liabilities which are included in policy liabilities and deferred acquisition expenses in the 
consolidated balance sheets.

10. Other liabilities
 2008 2007
Accounts payable $    64,903 $    64,434
Bank indebtedness (Note 20) 31,827 43,515
Short term debt (Note 27) 24,838 —
Accrued employee future benefi t liabilities (Note 16) 25,539 21,630
Unearned premium fi nance fee income 3,444 4,658
Other   49,605 43,108
    $  200,156 $  177,345

11.  Reinsurance
 In the normal course of business, the insurance subsidiaries cede reinsurance to other insurers 

in order to limit exposure to signifi cant losses. Reinsurance does not relieve the insurance 
subsidiaries of their primary liability as the originating insurer. Reinsurance treaties typically renew 
annually and the terms and conditions are reviewed by senior management and reported to the 
insurance subsidiaries’ Boards. Only reinsurers with an acceptable credit rating are accepted in the 
reinsurance programs. Based on ongoing monitoring, the insurance subsidiaries assess the credit  
risk associated with the reinsurance recoverable to be insignifi cant. 

 The General Insurance operation’s exposure to claims was limited as follows: $3,000 for an 
automobile claim; $2,000 for personal and commercial property claims; $1,750 for a casualty claim; 
and $2,500 for a surety claim. The General Insurance operation also has a catastrophe reinsurance 
arrangement providing coverage up to $500,000, in the event of a series of claims arising out 
of a single occurrence, under which the General Insurance operation is responsible for the fi rst 
$15,000 plus 2.5% of the fi rst $60,000 of claims exceeding that retention level. The Life Insurance 
operation’s exposure to claims is limited to $500 on any one life. These reinsurance arrangements 
are refl ected in the consolidated statements of income as a reduction of $106,447 (2007 - $95,281) 
in insurance premiums.
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12.  Shareholders’ equity
 The authorized classes of share capital at December 31, 2008 are as follows:

• 402,733 Preference Shares, issuable in series;
• Unlimited First Preference Shares, issuable in series; and
• Unlimited Common Shares.
The directors have designated the fi rst series of Preference Shares as Series A Convertible (“Series 
A Preference Shares”). The Series A Preference Shares are convertible, at the shareholder’s option, 
in perpetuity into Common Shares on a share for share basis and are entitled, when and if declared, 
to a non-cumulative dividend of $0.50 per share per annum.
The Series A Preference Shares and Common Shares are each entitled to one vote per share.
The First Preference Shares of each series rank pari passu with every other series of First Preference 
Shares and in priority to the Common Shares and the Series A Preference Shares of the Company 
with respect to the payment of dividends and the distribution of assets on the dissolution, liquidation 
or winding up of the Company. As of December 31, 2008 there were two series of First Preference 
Shares outstanding, the First Preference Shares, Series 1 and the First Preference Shares, Series 
2. The First Preference Shares, Series 1 and the First Preference Shares, Series 2, are non-voting 
unless there has been a specifi ed default in the payment of dividends or to approve of modifi cations 
attending to the series of shares.
The First Preference Shares, Series 1 are entitled to fi xed non-cumulative preferential cash dividends 
at a rate equal to $1.325 per share per annum. On and after October 17, 2009, the Company may 
redeem for cash the First Preference Shares, Series 1 in whole or in part, at the Company’s option, 
at $26.00 per share if redeemed prior to October 17, 2010, $25.75 if redeemed thereafter and prior to 
October 17, 2011, $25.50 if redeemed thereafter and prior to October 17, 2012, $25.25 if redeemed 
thereafter and prior to October 17, 2013 and $25.00 if redeemed thereafter, in each case together 
with all declared and unpaid dividends.
On and after October 17, 2009, the Company may convert all or any part of the outstanding First 
Preference Shares, Series 1 into that number of Common Shares determined by dividing by the 
then applicable redemption price, together with all declared and unpaid dividends to the date of 
conversion, by the greater of $1.00 and 95% of the weighted average trading price of the Common 
Shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange for the 20 consecutive trading days ending on the fourth 
day prior to the conversion dates. 
The First Preference Shares, Series 2 are entitled to fi xed non-cumulative preferential cash dividends 
at a rate equal to $1.1875 per share per annum. First Preference Shares, Series 2 will not be 
redeemable prior to October 17, 2011. On and after October 17, 2011, the Company may redeem 
for cash the First Preference Shares, Series 2 in whole or in part, at the Company’s option, at 
$26.00 per share if redeemed prior to October 17, 2012, $25.75 if redeemed thereafter and prior to 
October 17, 2013, $25.50 if redeemed thereafter and prior to October 17, 2014, $25.25 if redeemed 
thereafter and prior to October 17, 2015 and $25.00 if redeemed thereafter, in each case together 
with all declared and unpaid dividends.
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On and after October 17, 2011, the Company may convert all or any part of the outstanding First 
Preference Shares, Series 2 into that number of Common Shares determined by dividing by the 
then applicable redemption price, together with all declared and unpaid dividends to the date of 
conversion, by the greater of $1.00 and 95% of the weighted average trading price of the Common 
Shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange for the 20 consecutive trading days ending on the fourth 
day prior to the conversion dates.
The share capital of the Company is as follows:
  2008 2007
4,019,409 Common Shares $      72,387 $      72,387
4,000,000 First Preference Shares, Series 1 100,000 100,000
4,000,000 First Preference Shares, Series 2 100,000 100,000
258 Series A Convertible Preference shares 1 1
 $    272,388 $    272,388

Dividends during the year are as follows:
 2008 2007
  First Preference Shares, Series 1,
      $1.325 per share $        5,300 $        5,300
  First Preference Shares, Series 2
      $1.1875 per share 4,750 4,750
  Common Shares,
      $0.50 per share 2,010 2,010
  $      12,060 $      12,060

Shareholders’ entitlement to $3,727 (2007 - $4,719) of shareholders’ equity is contingent upon future 
payment of dividends to participating Life Insurance policyholders.
Net income per share has been calculated by dividing net income for the year, less dividends paid 
on preference shares, by the amount equal to the total number of Common Shares outstanding of 
4,019,409 less 693,819 (2007 - 691,814), which is the Company’s proportionate interest in its 
own common shares held indirectly. For the year, the Company paid out a dividend of $0.50 
per share on each of its Common Shares. When calculated on the basis of the reduced number 
of Common Shares caused by the elimination of the reciprocal holdings, the dividend is $0.60 
(2007 - $0.60) per share.
The following is a reconciliation of the numerators and the denominators of the basic and diluted  
(loss) income per Common Share computations:
 2008 2007

Net (loss) income $     (126,963) $      210,688
Dividends on First Preference Shares (10,050) (10,050)

Net (loss) income available to Common Shareholders $     (137,013) $      200,638

Weighted number of Adjusted Common Shares outstanding 
 - basic 3,325,848 3,327,853
Dilutive effect of convertible First Preference Shares into
 Common Shares 387,518 344,800

Weighted number of Adjusted Common Shares outstanding 
 - diluted 3,713,366 3,672,653
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13. Income taxes
The combined statutory Canadian federal and provincial tax rate applicable to the Company and its 
subsidiaries in 2008 approximates 34.3% (2007 - 35.4%). Income taxes are assessed on operating 
income after deducting premium taxes and investment taxes. The effective tax rate varies from the 
combined statutory rate as follows:
 2008 2007
Income taxes at statutory rate $     (36,990) $      98,145
Variance as a result of:
 Tax-paid dividends (14,325) (15,983)
 Non-taxable portion of losses (capital gains) 57,403 (23,632)
 Unused realized losses not recognized for
   accounting purposes 5,402 —
 Substantively enacted changes in income tax rates 489 (416)
 Other 672 1,691
Income tax provision  $      12,651 $      59,805

The Company’s income tax expense includes provisions for current and future taxes as follows:
    2008 2007
Current  $      32,239 $      86,777
Future  (19,588) (26,972)
    $      12,651 $      59,805

The General Insurance operation has unused capital tax losses and deductible temporary differences 
totaling $232,853 which have not been recognized in the future tax asset due to the uncertainty of 
future taxable capital gains against which to offset the losses. These capital losses do not expire 
and may be carried forward indefi nitely. 
In certain instances the tax basis of assets and liabilities differs from the carrying amount. These 
differences which will give rise to future income taxes are refl ected in the consolidated balance 
sheet as follows:
 2008 2007
Investments  $   (123,349) $   (198,813)
Policy liabilities 81,426 131,919
Losses recoverable in future years 19,048 6,228
Other   2,522 7,500
Future income taxes receivable (payable) $     (20,353) $     (53,166)
Recorded as:
 2008 2007
Future income tax asset $      19,489 $      20,180
Future income tax liability (39,842) (73,346)
     $     (20,353) $     (53,166)
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During 2008, the Company and its subsidiaries paid income tax instalments and assessments totaling 
$31,158 (2007 - $92,464) and received income tax refunds totaling $36,199 (2007 - $8,106).

Under the Income Tax Act, the Company is subject to a 33 1/3% refundable tax on certain Canadian 
dividends received. This tax will be refunded to the Company at a rate of $1.00 for every $3.00 
of taxable dividends paid in the future. The accumulated amount of refundable dividend tax at 
December 31, 2008 amount to $9,141 (2007 - $8,189). The potential benefi t of this amount has not 
been refl ected in these consolidated fi nancial statements.

14.  Items included in other comprehensive (loss) income
Other comprehensive (loss) income is presented net of income taxes, non-controlling interests 
(“NCI”) and participating policyholders (“PAR”) portion. The following amounts are included in each 
component of shareholders’ OCI.
 Income Taxes NCI/PAR
 2008 2007 2008 2007
Unrealized fair value change on
  available for sale investments $      (80,212) $      (12,265) $      (38,187) $           647
Fair value change on available for sale
  investments reclassifi ed to net income 22,535 (30,990) 10,752 (7,640)
Gain/loss on derivative investments
  designated as cash fl ow hedges (1,727) — (739) —
Gain/loss on derivative investments
  designated as cash fl ow hedges
  reclassifi ed to net income 69 — 30 —
Total expense (recovery) included in OCI $      (59,335) $     (43,255) $      (28,144) $       (6,993)

The Life Insurance operations entered into a bond forward derivative with a notional amount of 
$75,000 maturing January 16, 2009. This derivative has been accounted for as a hedging item in 
a cash fl ow hedging relationship. 
The Company reclassifi ed ($171) (2007 - $ nil) from OCI to investment income on the consolidated 
statement of income resulting from cash fl ow hedge ineffectiveness. The Company expects to 
reclassify ($637) from AOCI to net income before taxes on the consolidated statement of income in 
the next twelve months. The hedged transaction is expected to occur in 2009.

15. Analysis of net (loss) income
Components of net (loss) income, each net of policyholders’ and minority shareholders’ interest, is 
as follows:
    2008 2007
Income excluding undernoted $      111,604 $       91,717
Realized (loss) gain on available for sale investments (132,456) 133,562
Loss from equity method investment (106,111) (14,591)
 $    (126,963) $     210,688
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16.  Employee future benefi t plans
 Pension benefi t plans include defi ned benefi t plans available to certain employee and executive 

groups, as well as certain defi ned benefi ts elected to be retained on conversion of The Dominion’s 
defi ned benefi t plan to a money purchase plan in 1994. The Company and its subsidiaries also 
provide for post-retirement health and dental care coverage and other future benefi ts to qualifying 
employees and retirees.

 Total cash payments by the Company and its subsidiaries for employee future benefi ts for 2008, 
consisting of cash contributed to its funded pension plans, cash payments directly to benefi ciaries 
under its unfunded other benefi t plans, cash contributed to its defi ned contribution plan and payments 
to third party service providers on behalf of the employees was $11,740 (2007 - $5,642).
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 The following tables present fi nancial information for the Company and its subsidiaries’ defi ned benefi t 
plans:

 Pension Benefi t Plans Other Benefi t Plans
   2008 2007 2008 2007
 Accrued benefi t obligation
  Balance at beginning of year $  145,572 $ 145,308 $   23,311 $    27,631
  Current service cost 5,038 6,015 698 1,307
  Employee contributions 1,926 1,768 — —
  Interest cost 8,162 7,492 1,200 1,412
  Benefi ts paid (8,440) (5,238) (1,044) (759)
  Actuarial loss (gain) (29,444) (10,908) (4,164) (669)
  Curtailment loss (gain) — (169) — (3,379)
  Special termination benefi t costs 2,523 1,304 — —
  Plan amendments — — — (2,232)
  Settlement — — — —

  Balance at end of year $  125,337 $ 145,572 $   20,001 $    23,311

 
 Plan assets
  Fair value at beginning of year $  147,339 $ 144,184 $          — $           —
  Actual return on plan assets (25,276) 4,856 — —
  Employer contributions 7,275 1,770 — —
  Employee contributions 1,926 1,768 — —
  Purchase of annuity for ad-hoc pension increase — (263) — —
  Benefi ts paid (8,440) (4,976) — —
  Settlement — — — —

  Fair value at end of year $  122,824 $ 147,339 $          — $           —

 Funded status - plan surplus (defi cit) $     (2,513) $      1,767 $ (20,001) $   (23,311)
 Unamortized net actuarial loss (gain) 7,122 2,415 (429) 3,926
 Unamortized transitional obligation (asset) (3,647) (4,223) 720 1,159
 Accrued benefi t asset (liability) $         962 $        (41) $ (19,710) $   (18,226)

 Recorded in the consolidated balance sheet as:
   Other assets $      6,791 $     3,363 $          — $          —
   Other liabilities (5,829)  (3,404) (19,710) (18,226)
 Accrued benefi t asset (liability) $         962 $        (41) $ (19,710) $ (18,226)
 

Included in the previous fi gures are defi ned benefi t obligations in excess of plan assets as at December 31:

 Pension Benefi t Plans Other Benefi t Plans
 2008 2007 2008 2007

 Accrued pension obligation $  107,000 $   15,805 $   20,001 $    23,311
 
 Plan assets at fair value $    96,960 $   11,707 $          — $           —
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The employee future benefi t costs concerning the Company and its subsidiaries’ defi ned benefi t plans included 
in the Company’s consolidated statements of income are as follows:

 Pension Benefi t Plans Other Benefi t Plans
 2008 2007 2008 2007
 Annual net benefi t cost (income)
  Current service cost $     5,038 $     6,015 $        698 $     1,307
  Interest cost 8,162 7,492 1,200 1,412
  Actual return on plan assets 25,276 (4,856) — —
  Actuarial loss (gain) (29,444) (10,908) (4,164) (669)
  Curtailment loss (gain) — (169) — (473)
  Special termination benefi t costs 2,523 1,304 — —
  Plan amendments — — — (2,232)
  Settlement (loss) gain — — — —

  Employee future benefi t cost (income) prior to
    adjustments to recognize long-term nature 11,555 (1,122) (2,266) (655)

  Adjustments to recognize long-term nature:
  Difference between expected return and 
    actual return on plan assets (34,538) (4,109) — —
  Difference between net actuarial loss (gain)
    recognized and actual actuarial loss (gain) 29,832 11,371 4,355 1,076
  Difference between plan amendments
    recognized and actual plan amendments — — — 2,232
  Amortization of transitional obligation (asset) (577) (576) 439 665

 Net benefi t cost recognized for the year $     6,272 $     5,564 $     2,528   $     3,318

For pension benefi t plans, the net benefi t cost recognized for the period includes a special termination benefi t 
of $2,523 (2007 - 1,304) and a curtailment gain of $ nil (2007 - $169) in connection with a voluntary early 
retirement offered to eligible employees.

For other benefi t plans, the net benefi t cost recognized for the period includes a curtailment gain of $ nil (2007 
- $473) in connection with 2007 changes to post-retirement health and dental care coverage offered to eligible 
employees retiring in the years 2013-2017, and the change to fully retiree paid benefi ts for employees retiring 
thereafter. These changes also resulted in a reduction of the accrued benefi t obligation due to a curtailment 
gain of $ nil (2007 - $3,379) and a plan amendment gain of $nil (2007 - $2,232).

The Company measures its accrued benefi t obligations and the fair value of plan assets for accounting purposes 
as at December 31 of each year. The most recent and next required actuarial valuations of the Company and 
its subsidiaries’ employee future benefi t plans for funding purposes are as follows:

 Recent Next
 Valuation Valuation
 Date Date

Staff Pension Plan (The Dominion) January 1, 2006 January 1, 2009
Staff Pension Plan (other than The Dominion) December 31, 2005 December 31, 2008
Executive Pension Plan (The Dominion) September 30, 2008 September 30, 2009
Supplemental Employee Retirement Plan December 31, 2008 December 31, 2009
Retiree Health Benefi ts (The Dominion) January 1, 2006 January 1, 2009
Retiree Health Benefi ts (other than The Dominion) December 31, 2005 December 31, 2008

The actuarial valuations as at December 31, 2008 are scheduled to be completed by mid 2009 and are therefore 
not refl ected in these fi nancial statements.
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The average remaining service period of the active employees covered by the pension benefi t and other benefi t 
plans as at December 31 is as follows:

 2008 2007
Staff Pension Plan (The Dominion) 7 years 7 years
Staff Pension Plan (other than The Dominion) 22 years 22 years
Executive Pension Plan (The Dominion) 14 years 15 years
Supplemental Employee Retirement Benefi t Plan 14 years 14 years
Retiree Health Benefi ts (The Dominion) 11 years 11 years
Retiree Health Benefi ts (other than The Dominion) 8 years 16 years

The following weighted average assumptions were used in actuarial calculations:

 Pension Benefi t Plans Other Benefi t Plans
 2008 2007 2008 2007
 Accrued benefi t obligation as of December 31:
  Discount rate 7.3% 5.5% 7.3% 5.4%
  Rate of compensation increase 3.6% 4.1% N/A N/A
 Benefi t costs for years ended December 31:
  Discount rate 5.5% 5.0% 5.4% 5.2%
  Expected long-term rate of return on plan
    assets 6.1% 6.3% N/A N/A
  Rate of compensation increase 4.1% 4.1% N/A N/A
 Assumed health care cost trend rates at 
  December 31:
  Initial health care cost trend rate N/A N/A 6.4% 6.5%
  Cost trend rate declines to N/A N/A 4.3% 4.3%
  Year ultimate rate reached N/A N/A 2019 2011

A one-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects for 
2008:

 Increase Decrease

 (000s)

Annual total service and interest cost $       330 $     (261)
Accrued benefi t obligation 2,834 (2,308)

Plan assets consist of the following asset categories:

 Percentage of Plan Assets

 2008 2007

Equity securities 47% 54%
Debt securities 36% 36%
Refundable tax deposits and cash 17% 10%
  100% 100%

The Company and its subsidiaries also maintain money purchase staff pension plans available to employees. 
The total cost recognized for the period relating to these plans was $3,410 (2007 - $3,101).
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17. Segmented information
In managing its investments, the Company distinguishes between its Corporate Investments, its investment 
in General Insurance (“The Dominion”) and its investment in Life Insurance (“Empire”).

   2008
  Corporate
  Investments The Dominion Empire Total

Premium income $           — $1,023,257 $  686,178 $1,709,435
Change in fair value of held for
   trading investments (1,160) — (244,384) (245,544)
Realized (loss) gain on investments
   held for trading (2,934) — 19,920  16,986
Realized loss on available for
   sale investments (88,055) (31,909) (47,207) (167,171)
Investment and other income 28,243 101,641 273,871  403,755
Loss from equity method investment (117,313) — —  (117,313)
Taxes (22,362) 44,660 40,289  62,587
Policyholders’ and minority shareholders’
   portion of income — — 6,565  6,565
Segment net (loss) income (161,457) (4,029) 38,523  (126,963)

Segment assets 1,125,298 2,650,261 3,790,608  7,566,167

  2007

  Corporate
  Investments The Dominion Empire Total

Premium income $           — $  998,882 $  631,326 $1,630,208
Change in fair value of held for
   trading investments 1,032 — (84,349) (83,317)
Realized gain on investments
   held for trading 4,082 — 61,834 65,916
Realized gain on available for
   sale investments 16,158 120,361 38,878 175,397
Investment and other income 29,399 95,599 269,863 394,861
Loss from equity method investment (20,119) — — (20,119)
Taxes 3,512 76,898 29,000 109,410
Policyholders’ and minority shareholders’
   portion of income — — 7,110 7,110
Segment net income 22,497 144,589 43,602 210,688

Segment assets 1,435,166 2,817,234 3,988,588 8,240,988
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18. Commitments
 Future minimum payments under operating leases and other commitments are as follows:
 2009 $   16,548
 2010 13,028
 2011 11,097
 2012 8,297
 2013 6,760
 Thereafter 14,709
  $   70,439
19. Risk management

The Company and its subsidiaries, The Dominion and Empire, face various risk factors, inherent 
in their activities, including risk factors unique to insurance operations. These risk factors and their 
management are described below.
Credit risk, liquidity risk, and market risk
Credit risk is the risk of fi nancial loss resulting from a counterparty’s failure to discharge an obligation. 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its fi nancial obligations as they 
come due. Market risk includes exposure to fl uctuations in interest rates, currency rates and the fair 
value or cash fl ows of the Company’s investments.
The management of investments is conducted in accordance with investment policies that are approved 
by the Board of Directors. Management’s application of these policies is regularly monitored by Board 
committees. Management and Board committees review credit quality of investment purchases and 
also monitor the credit quality of invested assets over time.
The management of investments is key to matching policy liabilities and earning an appropriate 
return on investments matched to equity.
The Dominion’s executives manage liquidity relative to the anticipated pay-out patterns of General 
Insurance claims and, within those constraints, aim to maximize investment income.
Empire’s fi nancial, actuarial and investment executives meet regularly throughout each year to 
monitor the matching of investments to policy liabilities. This process is designed to ensure that 
interest rate and liquidity risks are managed appropriately.
Pricing risk
The Dominion and Empire price their products with the intention of achieving appropriate profi tability 
in the course of assuming obligations that are uncertain due to a number of factors, including the 
prospect that they may take many years to settle.
The Dominion is exposed to uncertainties involving claims frequency and severity, claims payment 
trends, investment returns as well as potential changes in legislation and in the interpretation of 
liability by the courts. Empire is exposed to uncertainties involving mortality, investment returns, 
expense levels and lapsing of policies.
Product pricing is established through consideration of the companies’ actuarial assessments of 
current claims exposures and anticipated trends in the risk factors described above.
In addition, The Dominion and Empire establish policies regarding the amount of risks underwritten 
which they are prepared to retain, taking into consideration the risk to their available equity. Amounts 
in excess of that retention are reinsured with external reinsurers.
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20. Derivative fi nancial instruments
 In the ordinary course of business, the Life Insurance operation has policy obligations which have a 

savings component that varies with a variety of indices and currencies. The fi nancial instruments used 
for matching this liability include various futures contracts and foreign currency forward contracts. 
In addition, the Life Insurance operation may use futures contracts and foreign currency forward 
contracts in its shareholders’ and policyholders’ equity account. The Life Insurance operation may 
also use other equity derivative contracts as part of a portfolio of assets to match policy liabilities as 
to duration and amounts. The Life Insurance operation uses bond forward contracts for cash fl ow 
hedging purposes. Fair value positive amounts and fair value negative amounts are reported on the 
balance sheet as other assets and other liabilities respectively.

 In addition, Corporate Investments includes foreign currency forwards and equity options in invested 
assets. The notional value of these contracts was $10,994 (2007 - $33,822).

 The notional amounts of these fi nancial instruments are not recognized on the balance sheet. Notional 
amounts are the contract amounts used to calculate the cash fl ows to be exchanged. They are a 
common measure of volume of outstanding transactions, but do not represent credit or market risk 
exposures.

 All contracts mature in less than 1 year except for other equity contracts which mature in 1 to 5 years.
In the Company’s opinion, these positions, which are actively monitored, do not represent any 
unusual risk and no signifi cant losses are anticipated.
 2008 2007

 Notional Fair Value  Notional Fair Value
 Amount Positive Negative Amount Positive Negative

Exchange-traded
 Equity index futures $      9,312 $         206 $           44 $    15,387 $         165 $         162
 Equity options 92 9 22 — — —
Over-the-counter
 Foreign currency forwards 8,387 239 2,148 86,019 1,054 885
 Other equity contracts 15,515 5,302 — 12,756 1,137 —
 Bond forward contracts 75,000 — 5,351 — — —

Total $  108,306 $      5,756 $      7,565 $  114,162 $      2,356 $      1,047
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21. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash equivalents are comprised of treasury bills, commercial paper and bankers’ acceptances 
with maturities of three months or less at the date of acquisition. Components of cash and cash 
equivalents for purposes of the consolidated statements of cash fl ows are as follows:

  2008 2007
 Cash $ (10,740) $     6,116
 Cash equivalents 368,034 358,669
  357,294 364,785
 Bank indebtedness (31,827) (43,515)
  $ 325,467 $ 321,270

22. Government regulation of automobile insurance
The Dominion’s generation of revenue from underwriting automobile risks is impacted by the regulation 
of certain automobile premium rates by the governments of Alberta, Ontario, Nova Scotia, New 
Brunswick, Prince Edward Island and Newfoundland.
Provincial government rate regulatory approval processes can result in the prescription of premium 
rates other than those The Dominion deems appropriate for the risks to be underwritten. The 
Dominion’s exposure to such prescribed rates is increased in the provinces of Ontario, Alberta 
and Newfoundland where The Dominion is required to provide coverage for substantially all risks 
presented to it, commonly referred to as the “all comers rules”.
The Dominion is required by regulation to assume a share of automobile insurance underwritten 
through the Facility Association, which operates insurance pools in several provinces. Such pools 
are designed to insure higher risk drivers that might otherwise be unable to obtain insurance. The 
Dominion’s share of pool premiums and costs are generally determined in relation to its share of 
total automobile premiums written by all insurers in each relevant province. Pool premium rates are 
regulated by provincial governments.
The Dominion’s net written automobile insurance premiums are $660,004 (2007 - $627,599), the 
majority of which are subject to rate regulation. The extent to which net premiums written would 
have differed in the absence of regulation is not determinable.
Amounts related to premiums subject to rate regulation are accounted for in these consolidated 
fi nancial statements in the same manner as amounts related to other premiums.
The Dominion’s claims costs are infl uenced by provincial governments to the extent they pass 
legislation or regulations that specify the nature and extent of benefi ts and other requirements that 
impact claims costs and the settlement process.

23. Guarantees and other contingencies
The Company by-laws provide indemnifi cation to its current and former directors, offi cers and 
employees to the extent permitted by law, against liabilities arising from their service to the Company. 
The broad general nature of these indemnifi cation by-laws does not permit a reasonable estimate 
of the maximum potential amount of any liability.
In connection with its operations, the Company is from time to time named as a defendant in actions 
for damages and costs allegedly sustained by plaintiffs. While it is not possible to estimate the 
outcome of the various proceedings at this time, the Company does not believe that it will incur any 
material loss or expense in connection with such actions.
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In certain cases, the Company would have recourse against third parties with respect to the foregoing 
items and the Company also maintains insurance policies that may provide coverage against certain 
of these items.

24. Related party transactions
In the normal course of business, the Company enters into transactions with investees involving 
administration services. These transactions are made on the same basis and terms as with unrelated 
parties, and are recorded at exchange amounts.
The Company’s investments in common and preferred stock include $453,822 (2007 - $520,134) of 
investments in entities that can be signifi cantly infl uenced by a party that can signifi cantly infl uence 
the Company. Included in investment and other income in the consolidated statements of income 
are cash dividends from these companies amounting to $11,508 (2007 - $10,718).

25. Capital
The Company’s capital is comprised of its shareholders’ equity. These funds are mainly invested in 
equities and the two insurance subsidiaries and are managed to provide long-term capital appreciation 
as well as to fund dividends to shareholders. 
The Dominion, as a regulated fi nancial institution, must comply with the capital adequacy requirements 
of the Insurance Companies Act, Canada as implemented and monitored by the Offi ce of the 
Superintendent of Financial Institutions Canada (“OSFI”). OSFI expects property and casualty insurers 
to exceed its target result for the prescribed Minimum Capital Test (“MCT”), which calculates a ratio 
of capital available to capital required. As at December 31, 2008, The Dominion exceeded OSFI’s 
regulatory target level of 150%. Management of The Dominion regularly monitors the sensitivity of 
existing capital to potential threats including negative claims development, declines in investment 
values and operating leverage (ratio of premiums to capital).
Empire Life also aims to manage its capital in order to meet the capital adequacy requirements of 
the Insurance Companies Act, Canada as established by OSFI. Under the guidelines established 
by OSFI, Empire’s capital consists of two tiers. Empire’s Tier 1 Capital includes common shares, 
contributed surplus, retained earnings and participating policyholders equity. Tier 2 Capital includes 
the accumulated unrealized gains on AFS securities, net of tax, subordinated debt, and negative 
reserves on policy liabilities. OSFI’s supervisory target Tier 1 and total capital ratios for Canadian 
life insurance companies are 105% and 150% respectively (with a regulatory minimum of 60% and 
120%, respectively). As at December 31, 2008, Empire exceeded all of these requirements.

26. Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income
Shareholders’ accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income is comprised of unrealized (losses) 
gains net of income tax on available for sale assets of ($312,158) (2007 - gains of $28,344) and 
unrealized (losses) gains net of income tax on derivatives designated as cash fl ow hedges ($2,770) 
(2007 - $ nil). 

27. Short term debt
 During 2008, the Company entered into a 364 day revolving committed credit facility of $65,000, 

which matures on September 30, 2009. Borrowings are at variable interest-rates that are based 
on 90 day banker’s acceptances. At December 31, 2008, $25,000 was drawn on this facility, in the 
form of banker’s acceptances which mature on January 20, 2009.

28. Comparative information
Certain comparative information has been reclassifi ed to conform to the basis of presentation 
adopted in the current year.
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29. Subsequent event
On March 4, 2009, proposed amendments to the Income Tax Act passed third reading and became 
substantively enacted under Canadian GAAP. Under these amendments, certain capital losses 
have been re-characterized as income losses for tax purposes. These amendments also result in 
most insurance investments and policy liabilities being taxed on a fair value basis, consistent with 
changes in accounting rules for fi nancial instruments adopted in 2007. The estimated impact of 
these amendments using fair values as of December 31, 2008 would be to increase net income by 
$82,450, increase the future income taxes asset by $76,630, decrease income taxes receivable by 
$11,562, decrease income and other taxes payable by $3,490, increase non-controlling interest in 
subsidiaries by $4,017, increase participating policyholders’ interest by $13,491 and decrease policy 
liabilities by $31,400. The actual amounts, which will be recorded in the fi rst quarter 2009 fi nancial 
statements, may differ from these estimates due to fl uctuations in the underlying fair value of the 
investments and updated actuarial calculations.
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Summary of Consolidated Results
(all dollar fi gures expressed in thousands except per share amounts)

(Unaudited)

 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Premium income $  1,709,435 $  1,630,208 $  1,628,870 $ 1,600,708 $ 1,543,086
Gain on sale of investments — — 73,289 36,356 17,013
Amortization of investment gains — — 61,967 51,795 43,972
Income (loss) from equity method
 investment (117,313) (20,119) 56,850 52,432 27,635
Change in unrealized appreciation
 of portfolio investments — — 124,951 132,094 64,543
Change in fair value of held for trading
 investments (245,544) (83,317) — — —
Realized gain on held for trading investments 16,986 65,916 — — —
Realized (loss) gain on available for sale investments (167,171) 175,397 — — —
Investment and other income  403,755 394,861 374,867 327,806 285,688

Total revenues 1,600,148 2,162,946 2,320,794 2,201,191 1,981,937
Claims and policy benefi ts 1,106,568 1,273,824 1,220,550 1,194,593 1,219,167
Expenses (including commissions)  551,391 561,914 527,023 497,423 447,185
Taxes 62,587 109,410 167,573 165,464 96,264

   (120,398) 217,798 405,648 343,711 219,321
Policyholders’ and minority
 shareholders’ portion of income 6,565 7,110 33,128 50,008 9,126

Net (loss) income $    (126,963) $     210,688 $     372,520 $    293,703 $    210,195

Net (loss) income per share - basic $        (41.20) $         60.29 $       109.97 $        86.68 $        62.67

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents  $      357,294 $     364,785 $     219,400 $    318,183 $    269,407
Equity method investment 221,205 309,861 331,698 271,712 190,934
Portfolio investments  878,947 1,097,886 1,026,175 1,085,173 651,659
Investments - insurance operations 5,398,721 5,687,639 4,983,381 4,422,214 4,048,984
Reinsurance recoverable 104,867 199,957 183,598 249,836 197,136
Premiums receivable 276,911 259,894 258,004 258,779 258,636
Other assets 328,222 320,966 356,356 349,287 390,659
     7,566,167 8,240,988 7,358,612 6,955,184 6,007,415

Segregated funds 3,348,827 4,594,300 3,847,800 2,875,800 2,233,635

   $10,914,994 $12,835,288 $11,206,412  $ 9,830,984 $ 8,241,050

Liabilities
Policy liabilities $  4,885,506 $  5,050,514 $  4,271,352 $ 4,097,529 $ 3,813,098
Other liabilities 298,602 303,589 549,371 575,857 427,738
Policyholders’ and minority shareholders’
 interest 164,860 186,439 140,168 366,128 114,750
    5,348,968 5,540,542 4,960,891 5,039,514 4,355,586
Capital stock 272,388 272,388 272,388 150,887 172,388
Retained earnings 2,259,739 2,399,714 2,125,333 1,764,783 1,479,441

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (314,928) 28,344 — — —

   2,217,199 2,700,446 2,397,721 1,915,670 1,651,829

   7,566,167 8,240,988 7,358,612 6,955,184 6,007,415

Segregated funds 3,348,827 4,594,300 3,847,800 2,875,800 2,233,635

   $10,914,994 $12,835,288 $11,206,412 $ 9,830,984 $ 8,241,050
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 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Premium income $  1,023,257 $    998,882 $ 1,026,997 $ 1,062,156 $ 1,071,274
Other income 13,132 12,921 13,888 13,754 12,630
Claims  (768,579) (714,655) (644,017) (645,448) (727,252)
Operating expenditures including
   commissions and premium taxes (318,559) (312,873) (316,512) (319,101) (312,060)
Underwriting income (loss) (50,749) (15,725) 80,356 111,361 44,592
Realized (loss) gain on available for
   sale investments (31,909) 120,361 — — —
Gain on sale of investments — — 55,924 25,080 15,647
Investment income 88,509 82,678 77,578 67,274 59,065
Income before taxes 5,851 187,314 213,858 203,715 119,304
Income taxes (9,880) 42,725 64,335 64,519 35,613
Net (loss) income $       (4,029) $    144,589 $    149,523 $    139,196 $      83,691

Claims ratio (to net premiums earned) 75.1% 71.5% 62.7% 60.8% 67.9%
Expense ratio (to net premiums earned) 31.1% 31.4% 30.8% 30.0% 29.1%

Combined ratio 106.2% 102.9% 93.5% 90.8% 97.0%

Gross premiums written 
Automobile $     666,175 $    633,082 $    649,637 $    659,961 $    703,521
Property 335,340 315,356 317,839 328,256 330,635
Casualty 90,594 90,719 91,250 92,318 91,687
 $  1,092,109 $ 1,039,157 $ 1,058,726 $ 1,080,535 $ 1,125,843

Assets $  2,650,261 $ 2,817,289 $ 2,629,599 $ 2,516,012 $ 2,244,990

Summary of General Insurance Operations
(all dollar fi gures expressed in thousands)

(Unaudited)



 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Premium income $     686,178 $    631,326 $     601,873 $     538,552 $    471,812
Amortization of
  investment gains — — 61,967 51,795 43,972
Change in fair value of held
  for trading investments (244,384) (84,349) — — —
Realized gain on held
  for trading investments 19,920 61,834 — — —
Realized (loss) gain on available for
  sale investments (47,207) 38,878 — — —
Investment and other income 273,871 269,863 258,837 220,566 194,730
  688,378 917,552 922,677 810,913 710,514

Policy benefi ts 337,989 559,169 576,533 549,145 491,915
Expenses and commissions 265,012 278,671 241,089 209,747 165,933
Taxes 40,289 29,000 42,901 16,557 15,625
Profi ts allocated to policyholders (3,282) (4,035) 4,687 4,832 1,991
Profi ts to minority shareholders 9,847 11,145 11,699 6,236 7,135
Net contribution to E-L $       38,523 $      43,602 $       45,768 $       24,396 $      27,915

Premium income by line
Individual:
Insurance $     283,981 $    272,859 $     243,153 $     209,802 $    182,706
Annuities 113,731 87,281 116,774 104,499 86,574
Health 14,930 13,569 11,826 10,165 8,362
 412,642 373,709 371,753 324,466 277,642
Group:
Insurance 23,470 23,002 20,724 19,535 17,515
Annuities 3,974 3,802 3,651 4,969 3,498
Health 246,092 230,813 205,745 189,582 173,157
  273,536 257,617 230,120 214,086 194,170

 $     686,178 $    631,326 $     601,873 $     538,552 $    471,812

Assets, including segregated funds $  7,095,633 $ 8,449,823 $  7,096,748 $  5,826,121 $ 5,049,120

Summary of Life Insurance Operations
(all dollar fi gures expressed in thousands)

(Unaudited)
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Summary of Financial Progress Since the Company’s Inception
(all dollar fi gures expressed in thousands except per share amounts) 
(Unaudited)
    Net  Net
Year Ending Total Net  Total Shareholders’ Net Income Per
December 31 Assets Premiums Revenues Equity Income Share-Basic

1969 $    161,787 $     41,256 $     49,966 $     21,447 $     2,032 $         .58
1970 178,204 48,024 57,637 24,656  2,607 .75
1971 192,863 52,386 62,985 27,007 2,504 .72
1972 212,319 57,570 69,404 30,824 4,352 1.25
1973 234,926 67,732 81,221 34,707 4,278 1.22
1974 257,732 76,487 92,117 37,155 2,118 .60
1975 282,000 88,314 105,793 39,741 2,990 .85
1976 323,131 111,484 131,560 45,824 6,375 1.82
1977 376,428 134,419 158,446 55,047 9,970 2.86
1978 450,606 150,607 179,995 70,323 7,252 2.08
1979 487,206 147,330 181,869 82,604 13,084 3.26
1980 536,926 164,708 204,357 97,422 11,300 2.81
1981 585,110 195,967 242,631 92,162 (1,860) (.46)
1982 630,645 218,042 273,265 100,691 8,662 2.15
1983 706,425 219,067 281,979 129,134 28,464 7.08
1984 777,270 230,445 300,345 150,766 26,954 6.71
1985 1,118,141 356,232 441,180 140,111 (9,671) (2.41)
1986 1,400,171 435,795 537,969 154,593 18,436 4.59
1987 1,545,769 480,742 602,617 187,455 21,846 5.44
1988 1,666,086 477,787 610,928 222,944 36,097 8.98
1989 1,832,250 547,353 696,924 256,575 40,258 10.01
1990 1,928,160 568,217 727,841 255,463 7,208 1.80
1991 2,341,396 667,477 820,109 276,464 31,725 7.89
1992 2,783,297 737,292 933,083 322,706 18,700 4.65
1993 2,944,319 706,822 914,718 362,925 41,619 10.36
1994 3,029,425 637,915 812,062 402,734 41,055 10.21
1995 3,052,601 723,330 900,179 443,953 43,555 10.83
1996 3,598,443 766,606 964,533 498,320 57,814 14.38
1997 5,130,087 805,187 1,135,463 667,634 166,386 41.39
1998 5,522,285 822,513 1,109,457 951,114 57,165 14.22
1999 5,756,343 875,594 1,185,846 1,001,548 52,599 13.09
2000 6,253,408 918,065 1,267,189 1,139,691 73,389 18.26
2001 6,385,555 966,826 1,306,988 1,250,974 77,480 19.27
2002 6,433,194 1,107,295 1,380,163 1,267,385 51,512 12.81
2003 7,308,559 1,358,119 1,652,951 1,375,394 46,870 11.66
2004 8,279,929 1,543,086 1,893,119 1,682,143 129,886 31.91
2005 9,830,984 1,600,708 2,201,191 1,915,670 293,703 86.68
2006 11,206,412 1,628,870 2,320,794 2,397,721 372,520 109.97
2007 12,835,288 1,630,208 2,162,946 2,700,446 210,688 60.29
2008 10,914,994 1,709,435 1,600,148 2,217,199 (126,963) (41.20)

This chart is drawn from the individual annual reports and therefore has not been restated for any subsequent changes in accounting policies.
 Note: 1985 -   The Canadian Indemnity Company was acquired
  1986 -   Montreal Life Insurance Company was acquired
  1991 -   Canadian operations of SAFECO Corporation were acquired
  1997 -   Colonia Life Insurance Company was acquired
   -   Investment in National Trustco Inc. was sold
  1998 -   E-L Financial’s Corporate Investments were recorded at market value versus cost basis
  2006 - Changes in fair value of E-L Financial’s Corporate Investments are recognized in income in the period in which the change occurs
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

HEAD OFFICE  Tenth Floor, 165 University Avenue, Toronto, Ontario, M5H 3B8
 Tel:  416-947-2578
 Fax:  416-362-2592

AUDITORS Deloitte & Touche LLP, Toronto

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR  Computershare Investor Services Inc.
 100 University Avenue, 9th Floor
 Toronto, Ontario
 M5J 2Y1
 Telephone:  416-981-9633
 Toll Free:  1-800-564-6253

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTINGS
 Common Shares ELF
 First Preference Shares, Series 1 ELF.PR.F
 First Preference Shares, Series 2 ELF.PR.G

REPORTING PROCEDURE FOR ACCOUNTING AND AUDITING MATTERS
If you have a complaint regarding accounting, internal controls or auditing matters or a concern regarding 
questionable accounting or auditing matters, you should submit your written complaint or concern to:

Mr. Douglas Townsend
E-L Financial Corporation Limited
165 University Avenue, 10th Floor
Toronto, Ontario
M5H 3B8
Email: auditchair@tkactuarial.ca
Phone: 613-384-0884

You may submit your complaint or concern anonymously. Your submission will be kept confi dential and will be 
treated in accordance with the Company’s policy for reporting accounting or auditing matters.
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